[—

MPC
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING
FEBRUARY 10, 2026



N

midtown

MIDTOWN PARKS CONSERVANCY
(MPC)

MIDTOWN PARKS CONSERVANCY AND TO ALL

irectors of the Midtown Parks Conservancy ("MPC") will
at 12:00 P.M. via-

£SO epruarv 10, 20

ard-meeting-feb-2026/

and join as tici ion upon the following matters. The Board of Directors of

orders,
convenient or desirable, with

IL.

III.

IV.

orders, resolutions or motions; (ii) adopt and approve such
and (iii) take other direct or_indirect actions as may be necessary,
ect to the following mattg

resolutions or motior

Call to Order

Consent Agenda
a) Minutes of MPC Board Meeting for 4
b) Profit & Loss Statement (Decembg

c) Balance Sheet (December 31, 2025
d) Listing of Checks {Wells Fargo Accou

Financial Matters
a) Overview of budget to actuals: January - December 31, 2025
b) Budget for 2026

¢) Audit Report & 990 for the year January — December 31, 2024
Events & Programming Reports

a) Midtown, Bagby, Baldwin, & Glover Parks

Communications

a) Social Media Platforms & PR


https://midtownhouston.com/event/mpc-board-meeting-feb-2026/

o

VI. Maintenance (combined report)

idtown & Bagby Parks; Midtown Park Plaza
: Baldwin & Glover Parks

a. Assignment of greement Between MRA and MPC

XI. Other Matters

XII. Adjourn



CONSENT AGENDA



o

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
DBA MIDTOWN PARKS CONSERVANCY

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

August 12, 2025
irectors (the “Board”) of Midtown Parks Conservancy (“MPC”’) was held on
12:00 p.m., via video and telephonic conferencing. The roll was called of
Pos. # Name

4 Willie Coleman
Vacant

aff members Kandi Schramm, Vernon
adison Walkes; MPC staff members
stal Davis, Chandler Snipe, Sharita

Williams, Kayler Williams, Davi
Mechelle Phillips and Amaris

Mary Buzak of Bracewell LLP, and Bob Selhngslo
Director Goren called the meeting to order.

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Director Goren noted that Director Franks will be steppi
Franks for his leadership, active participation, and co
contributed to MPC’s success.

CONSENT AGENDA

A) MINUTES OF MPC BOARD MEETING FOR MAY 13, 2025
B) PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT (JUNE 2025)

C) BALANCE SHEET (JUNE 2025)

D) LISTING OF CHECKS - WELLS FARGO ACCOUNT (JUNE 30,

Vernon Williams, Chief Operating Officer, presented the Consent Agenda.

Director Coleman made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion was
seconded by Director Thibodeaux and carried by unanimous vote.



()

FINANCIAL MATTERS

A) OVERMEW OF CURRENT FINANCIALS THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025

of The Morton Accounting Services presented an overview of MPC’s financials

5198,532) and
($1,187,709). MP
maintenance exp

A’s annual contribution for maintenance and unreimbursed salaries
ocessed $893,761 in disbursements, most of which related to payments for
and professional services expenses.

meeting.

EVENTS & PROGRAMMING

Mechelle Philips, Event Dirce provided @n ovgrvie ramming for the second
; arty events and photo
opportunities for visitors and attendance statisti

COMMUNICATIONS

A) GENERAL & SOCIAL MEDIA PLAT

Madison Walkes, Sr. Marketing & Communications"Manager, presentéd summaries of
and June marketing reports for MPC, as well as MRA and MMD, including statistics relat
various social media platforms that overall reflect consistent output and growing
interest in public art, local events, and neighborhood storytelling.

MAINTENANCE (COMBINED REPORT)

A) MIDTOWN & BAGBY PARKS: MIDTOWN PARK PLAZA
B) COH: BALDWIN & GLOVER PARKS

C) MIDTOWN PARK PARKING GARAGE

D) OVERALL DISTRICT, LEGACY PROJECTS & NEW IMPROVEMENTS




I~

Jeremy Rocha, MRA’s Sr. Manager of Engineering and Facilities, provided a summary of
maintenance team operations to ensure the assets maintained by MPC are operational and the green
spaces are functioning.

untain maintenance cleaning and trash pickup is scheduled every Thursday.
equipment for the fountain is ongoing and expected to be completed in the

1 dog park & kiosk
Bagby Park mowingand trash pickup service isseheduled weekly on Tuesdays.

e Staff continues to coordinate with the™s
service and irrigation system repairs as
e Updates to the irrigation system and rep

COH-Owned Parks

e Baldwin Park and Glover Park mowing and trash pickup is scheduled on
Thursdays.

e Replacement of the drinking fountain, BBQ pits and trash cans
completed in the third quarter of 2025.
The Baldwin Park surfaces were power washed in the second quarter of 2025.

e The Glover Park lighting update/refurbishment project is ongoing while the vendor
identifies replacements for discontinued fixtures and is expected to be completed in the first
quarter of 2026.

win Park was



Ico

e The City of Houston will remove one dead pecan tree at Glover Park. This project is
expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2025.

Office Buildings

and 410 Pierce roof seal coating project was completed in the second quarter of

410 Pierce HVAC update and refurbishment is 85% complete and is expected
in the fourth quarter of 2025.
10 Pierce water meter reconfiguration project was completed in the second

aid the maintenance team with categorizing and
ce needs are ongoing.

endor to ensure operational functionality
the 402 and 410 Pi
e The project to ref] dscaping elements along Bagby Street
Park will bring landscaping elements

back to baseline condit

SECURITY - S.E.A.L. SECURITY SOLUTION

Jaime Giraldo, Director of Public Safety, Public Safety
Administrative Coordinator and gave a brief ¢ i i I
in Midtown, including the City of Houstofi
between MRA and The Harris Center of Mental
support, clinical engagement, case management,
individuals within Midtown.

health
services to used

care coordin

A) MIDTOWN & BAGBY PARKS

Erica Rocha, Vice President of S.E.A.L. Security L.L.C., presented a summary ocumented
incidents during January — July 2025, including park rules violations, i ion requests,
assistance requests, suspicious persons activity reports, EMS/HFD, calls, property
damage/defacing reports and suspicious loitering activity reports.

Ms. Rocha also noted that an additional officer is patrolling Bagby Park as an added presence in
the park.

MIDTOWN PARK PARKING GARAGE — WINPARK




(o)

Jailyn Moss of Winpark presented the parking garage operations summary for 2025, which
includes the addition of new monthly contracts and efforts to identify new prospective monthly
tenants fox the garage through marketing on Facebook and Google as well as coordinating with

LEGAL MATTER

No report was’provided on

OTHER MATTERS

Bob Sellingsloh of Wulfe & Co.
has been extended for an additiona

a Calle, LLC for the Bagby Park kiosk

ADJOURN

There being no further business, the meeting w

Matt Thibodeaux, Secretary

Date



£\

1'HE MI:IR'TEIN AI:I:I:ILINtINE SERVICES

Midtown Park Conservancy
Financial Report Summary
February Board Meeting

day, February 10, 2026

Authority for Tenant rental
(5166,652). During the pe

in these category going towards — The main
towards Landscaping ($199,528) and Irrigation }



Note: The financial statements are still pending any year end entries to finalize the books for audit.

11
MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis January through December 2025
Jan - Dec 25 Budget $ Over Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
1,789,962.05 1,725,009.00 64,953.05
1,789,962.05 1,725,009.00 64,953.05
50,261.82 46,100.00 4,161.82
199,233.71 215,800.00 -16,566.29
249,495.53 261,900.00 -12,404.47
27,002.51 70,000.00 -42,997.49
27,002.51 70,000.00 -42,997.49
2,200.00 30,000.00 -27,800.00
36,885.00 45,000.00 -8,115.00
Total 40200 - 39,085.00 75,000.00 -35,915.00
40500 - Inve!
40501 - Interest-Checking 29,152.51 10,000.00 19,152.51
Total 40500 - Investments 10,000.00 19,152.51
Total 40005 - Unrestricted Incom, 2,141,909.00 -7,211.40
41000 - Restricted Income
41001 - MMD Contributions 675,000.00 -385,763.71
Total 41000 - Restricted Income 236. 675,000.00 -385,763.71
Total Income -392,975.11
Gross Profit -392,975.11

Expense
60000 - Operating Expenses
60500 - Employee Related Expenses
60501 - Salaries

Total 60500 - Employee Related Expenses

60550 - Professional Services
60551 - Accounting Services

66,710.97 75,000.00

60552 - Audit & Tax Fees 19,200.00 22,000.00
60580 - Bank Fees 2,840.03 500.00
60583 - IT Services 1,258.75 0.00
60584 - Legal Fees 33,980.00 42,000.00
60590 - Security

60591 - Security - Bagby Park 5,674.24 9,000.00

60594 - Security - Midtown Park 195,614.64 140,000.00

60595 - Security - Midtown Garage 116,978.31 -98,021.69
Total 60590 - Security 318,167.19 -45,832.81
60610 - Web Hosting 18,449.41 500.00 17,949.41
60621 - Parking Garage Mgmt 26,170.35 70,000.00 -43,829.65
60622 - Maintenance Dept. Staff Support 9,728.19 8,000.00 1,728.19
60623 - Communcations Consultants 24,523.11 48,000.00 -23,476.89
60630 - Park Cleaning Services

60632 - Midtown Park 8,320.00 9,600.00 -1,280.00
Total 60630 - Park Cleaning Services 8,320.00 9,600.00 -1,280.00

No assurance is provided on these financial statements



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis January through December 2025
Jan - Dec 25 Budget $ Over Budget
60640 - Event Planner/Consultants 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00
529,348.00 654,600.00 -125,252.00
6,160.42 2,000.00 4,160.42
Bagby Park 2,746.18 1,350.00 1,396.18
ses - Baldwin Park 0.00 50.00 -50.00
ses - Midtown Park 438.14 3,600.00 -3,161.86
Licenses 3,184.32 5,000.00 -1,815.68
308.54 0.00 308.54
6,118.24 4,000.00 2,118.24
0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00
15,771.52 13,000.00 2,771.52
23,112.47 9,000.00 14,112.47
10,615.69 10,000.00 615.69
60804 - Offi v 3,731.32 4,000.00 -268.68
60805 - Eqg i 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00
60820 - O 914.21 1,000.00 -85.79

60830 - Utilities
60831 - Irrigation Systems-

60832 - Water Bill - Midto 15,000.00 -13,447.77
60833 - Water Bill - Bagh 40,000.00 -35,286.23
60834 - Water Bill - Elgir 11,000.00 -5,736.53
60835 - Water Bill - McG Street 1,000.00 -781.69
60836 - Water Bill - EntryiPlaza ‘ 7,500.00 -5,335.21
60837 - Water Bill - Holma 13,000.00 -1,978.43
60839 - Water Bill - Metro Med A 8,000.00 -4,873.07
60840 - Water Bill - Bagby Park 3 1,740.95
60843 - Water Bill - Caroline Street -9,207.21

Total 60831 - Irrigation Systems-Water Bills -74,905.19

60850 - Electricity
60851 - Electricity - Midtown Park
60852 - Electricity - Bagby Park
60854 - Electricity - Bagby Street
60858 - Electricity - Holman Street
60859 - Electricity - Entry Portals
60860 - Electricity - Metro Median/Main

Total 60850 - Electricity 105,953.21 87,500.00

Total 60830 - Utilities 163,548.02 220,000.00
Total 60800 - Office Facility Costs 201,921.71 249,000.00

60880 - Equipment Rental (Non-Office)
60881 - Equipment Rental - Midtown Park 12,116.00 13,000.00

Total 60880 - Equipment Rental (Non-Office) 12,116.00 -884.00
60890 - Depreciation Expense 0.00 4,70 -4,700.00
60900 - Training, Education & Conferenc

60902 - Conferences & Conventions 3,571.41 3,000.00 571.41
Total 60900 - Training, Education & Conferenc 3,571.41 3,000.00 571.41
60915 - Travel

60916 - Travel Expense 22,791.50 10,000.00 12,791.50

60917 - Transportation/Mileage 6,849.08 15,000.00 -8,150.92
Total 60915 - Travel 29,640.58 25,000.00 4,640.58

No assurance is provided on these financial statements



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis January through December 2025

Jan - Dec 25 Budget $ Over Budget

60930 - Insurance
ommerical General Liability 40,644.88 35,000.00 5,644.88
ectors & Officers - Insuranc 1,622.00

42,266.88 35,000.00 7,266.88
5,231.07 6,500.00 -1,268.93
12,114.85 13,000.00 -885.15
60943 - Pest Cont agby Street 3,003.06 2,880.00 123.06
Total 60940 - Pest Cg 20,348.98 22,380.00 -2,031.02
60.81
60.81
0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00
Total 60961 - 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00
60970 - F,
60971 71,574.77 70,000.00 1,674.77
19,128.23 30,000.00 -10,871.77

Total 60970 - Fountains 100,000.00 -9,297.00

61020 - Irrigation Systems R
61021 - Irrgation Repairs 36,000.00 -16,236.95
61022 - Irrigation Repair 39,000.00 -24,984.00
61023 - Irrigation Repairs - 2,000.00 -1,640.12
61024 - Irrigation Repairs - 4,000.00 -4,000.00
61026 - Irrigation Repairs -Holma o 2,766.87
61027 - Irrigation Repairs - Entry Port -5,283.89
61028 - Irrigation Repairs - Metro Medi 147,869.09
61029 - Irrigation Repairs - Bagby Park 2,581.60
61032 - Irrigation Repairs -Caroline St -9,481.53

Total 61020 - Irrigation Systems Repairs 125,000.00 91,591.07

61036 - Irrigation System Supplies
61037 - Irrigation Supplies

Total 61036 - Irrigation System Supplies
61040 - Landscaping

61041 - Landscaping - Midtown Park 48,973.90 0.00

61042 - Landscaping - Bagby Park 15,108.10

61043 - Landscaping - Gray Street 33,480.00

61045 - Landscaping - Bagby Street 71,594.94

61046 - Landscaping - Elgin Street 19,800.00

61047 - Landscaping - McGowen St. 12,860.00 .

61048 - Landscaping - Entry Plaza 18,849.14 18,849.14

61049 - Landscaping - Holman St. 24,320.00 24,320.00

61050 - Landscaping - Entry Portals 37,200.00 37,200.00

61051 - Landscaping - Metro Median/Main 89,280.00 : 89,280.00

61052 - Landscaping - Caroline Street 74,371.80 0.0 74,371.80

61040 - Landscaping - Other 0.00 554,200.00 -554,200.00
Total 61040 - Landscaping 445,837.88 554,200.00 -108,362.12
61100 - Street Furniture

61101 - Street Furniture - Midtown Park 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00

61102 - Street Furniture - Bagby Park 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00

61105 - Street Furniture - Bagby Street 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00
Total 61100 - Street Furniture 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00

No assurance is provided on these financial statements



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
January through December 2025

Jan - Dec 25 Budget $ Over Budget
61120 - Pavers
61123, - Pavers - Gray Street 2,325.50
avers - Elgin Street 800.00
ers - McGowen St 800.00
3,925.50
- Other Streets 11,985.00
11,985.00
61195 - Elevator 11,580.98 15,000.00 -3,419.02
61196 - HVAC 10,926.40 5,000.00 5,926.40
2,791.50 10,000.00 -7,208.50
59,478.57 50,000.00 9,478.57
62,270.07 60,000.00 2,270.07
61220 - Storage 7,886.00 8,118.00 -232.00
61290 - Supplie
61291 - S 1,044.66 250.00 794.66
61292 0.00 150.00 -150.00
61293 3,990.46 3,600.00 390.46
Total 61290 - Supplies & Tools 5,035.12 4,000.00 1,035.12
61310 - Miscellaneous Mainte
61311 - Misc. Maintenance 18,000.00 -18,000.00
61312 - Misc. Maintenanc 83,000.00 -54,229.70
61313 - Misc. Maintenanc 20,000.00 -19,401.13
Total 61310 - Miscellaneous N 121,000.00 -91,630.83
61900 - Property Management
61901 - Pierce Street Buldings 56,094.24
Total 61900 - Property Management 56,094.24
Total 60960 - Maintenance Expenses -45,175.79
Total 60000 - Operating Expenses -144,856.85

62000 - Non Operating Expenses

62050 - Program Expenses

62027 - Security - Events
62028 - Marketing/Advertising/Promotion
62030 - Miscellaneous Program Expense
62031 - Testing & Setup
62032 - Equipment - Events
62060 - Events
62061 - Events - Bagby Park 68,042.06 30,000.00
62062 - Events - Baldwin Park 4,172.50 2,500.00
62063 - Events - Glover Park 0.00 3,000.00
62064 - Events - Midtown Park 23,678.16 25,000.00 -1,321.84
62060 - Events - Other 9,064.87
Total 62060 - Events 104,957.59 44,457.59
Total 62050 - Program Expenses 156,571.66 89,000.00 67,571.66
Total 62000 - Non Operating Expenses 156,571.66 89,000.00 67,571.66
Total Expense 2,774,721.81 2,852,007.00 -77,285.19
Net Ordinary Income -350,787.92 -35,098.00 -315,689.92
Net Income -350,787.92 -35,098.00 -315,689.92

No assurance is provided on these financial statements



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison

Accrual Basis

As of December 31, 2025

Dec 31, 25 Dec 31, 24 $ Change % Change
ASSETS
Current Assets
338,857.46 576,947.91 -238,090.45 -41.3%
338,857.46 576,947.91 -238,090.45 -41.3%
ounts Receiva
2000 - Accounts 176,502.91 214,097.39 -37,594.48 -17.6%
Total Accounts Rece 176,502.91 214,097.39 -37,594.48 -17.6%
12200 - Prepaid E 0.00 174.24 -174.24 -100.0%
1,212.09 1,698.82 -486.73 -28.7%
Total Other G 1,212.09 1,873.06 -660.97 -35.3%
792,918.36 -276,345.90 -34.9%
Fixed Assets
15000 - Furniture 21,886.67 0.00 0.0%
Total Fixed Ass 21,886.67 0.00 0.0%
Other Assets
18600 - Other Assets 0.00 94,000.00 -94,000.00 -100.0%
Total Other Assets -94,000.00 -100.0%
TOTAL ASSETS -370,345.90 -40.8%
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
20000 - Accounts Payable -15.0%

Total Accounts Payable

Credit Cards

21000 - WF Credit Card #2419

Total Credit Cards

Other Current Liabilities

23000 - Short-Term Liabilities

23200 - Accrued Expense

208,424.84

-15.0%

17,729.96
3,374.24

,804.89
3,000.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 21,104.20 8,804.89 12,299.31
Total Current Liabilities 201,715.48 221,099.22 -19,383.74
Total Liabilities 201,715.48 221,099.22 -19,383.74
Equity
32000 - Unrestricted Net Assets 687,705.81 650,764.38
Net Income -350,962.16 36,941.43 -1,050.1%
Total Equity 336,743.65 687,705.81 -51.0%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 538,459.13 908,805.03 -370,345.90 -40.8%

No assurance is provided on these financial statements




Accrual Basis

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

Check Register

As of December 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Aug - Dec 25
Check 08/05/2025 ACH PUBLIC STORAGE -415.00
Check 08/05/2025 ACH PUBLIC STORAGE MPC STORAGE UNIT PAYMENT FOR UNIT#A332 - AUGUST 2025 -451.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/06/2025 6066 Ayden William Trejo DJ Services - TYT August Music August 2025 -300.00
Bill Pmt -Check BAKER'S SAFE & LOCK CO.., INC.  402/410 Building Standard Keys Look Alike July 2025 -15.00
Bill Pmt -Check Midtown Redevelopment Authority CPA Services - April, May and June 2025 CPA Services -25,133.19
Bill Pmt -Check Morgan Newton Event Support July 29, 2025 -50.00
Bill Pmt -Check Pop Shop America Citrus Stamped Tea Towels/Napkins Workshop August 2025 -1,508.44
Bill Pmt -Check Winpark Management, LLC Midtown Park's Parking Garage Operating Expenses -May 2025 -3,749.13
Bill Pmt -Chec] aladium Analytics LLC Video Monitoring 07/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 Bagby Park Monitoring Fee- including off-ho... -650.00
€ of Houston-Water Dept. {Travis} 2905 Travis St Midtown Park Water bill acct# 4328-7435-7078 JULY 2025 -130.29
8/08/2025 of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 402 PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6570-6357 JULY 2025 -845.89
Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 410 PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6480-7743 JULY 2025 -692.29
08/13/2025 6073 iton Brands Inc 06.25.2025 - 07.24.2025 -372.93
08/13/2025 6074 NE MARTIN, JR MPC Events and Programs August 2025 -275.00
08/13/2025 6075 Holdings Movie Night July 2025 -2,100.00
-Check 08/13/2025 6076 style Enterprise LLC Augist 9, 2025 Classes -400.00
Pmt-Check 08/13/2025 6077 Team Services -1,700.00
mt -Check 08/13/2025 MPC Marketing Retainer August 2025 -1,500.00
08/13/2025 MIDTOWN PARK: Flush Valve Repair {materials&repairs}; June 2025 -505.00
08/13/2025 Commercial Plumbing Service Call 06.25.25 -2,766.05
08/13/2025 -15,640.48
Bill P 08/13/2025 Blogs and PR -3,108.00
i 08 0 Drinking Water Fountain Repairs July 2025 -1,063.78
'TC Repairs 410 Pierce St- August 2025 -362.25
Bill Pmt -Check -885.95
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 age 07.28.25 - 08.08.25 -126.70
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 6087 -1,321.25
Bill Pmt -Check  08/13/2025 anagement - June - August 2025 -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 Sound Meditation - July 16, 2025 @ Baldwin Park -175.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 se Reimbursement: Mileage for District 07.28 - 08.08.2025 -91.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 ge (5) Pick-Ups JULY 2025 -800.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 & August 2025 -337.50
Bill Pmt -Check  08/13/2025 Construction EC aterial & Services}Monthly Landscape Maintenance July 2025 -1,684.28
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 SEAL Security Security Officer with Vehicle 07.01.25 -07.31.25 -24,759.12
Bill Pmt -Check 08/13/2025 Dj Mav Holdings AV Team Hours July 2025 -2,450.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/19/2025 6096 WELLS FARGQ -8,392.77
Bill Pmt -Check  08/20/2025 6097 Antonio Muno: August 2025 Contract M -833.69
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2025 6098 CENTERPOI VOID: 410 Piercegd8 August 2025 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2025 6099 Holders Pest § -1,112.78
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2025 6100 KILGORE Ind -2,202.60
Bill Pmt -Check  08/20/2025 6101 Landscape A -6,820.98
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2025 6102 -250.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2025 6103 Morgan Newto -100.00
Bill Pmt -Check  08/20/2025 6104 PopLife Popping €o. {Goodie Bags} -200.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2025 6105 SHINE UR LIGHT gust 13, 2025 @ Baldwin Park -175.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2025 6106 Winpark Management; e 2025 -71.67
Bill Pmt -Check 08/26/2025 6107 Comcast -1,505.73
Bill Pmt -Check  08/26/2025 6108 COMCAST BUSINESS Service - AUG 13 - SEP... -313.60
Bill Pmt -Check 08/26/2025 6109 Lake Management Services LP -5,233.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/26/2025 6110 Megan Kingsley -175.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/26/2025 6111 Ramiro Delgado -125.30
Bill Pmt -Check 08/26/2025 6112 Robert K Hall -1,150.00
Bill Pmt -Check 08/26/2025 6113 Steven Smith 2 8.11 - 08.15.2025 -52.50
Bill Pmt -Check 08/27/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Travis} i 1 4328-7435-7078 AU -130.29
Bill Pmt -Check 08/27/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... -174.73
Bill Pmt -Check 08/27/2025 ACH RELIANT {MIdtown Park} -7,529.41
Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} -5.94
Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} -24.47
Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILI -28.09
Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILI rojects-- AUG -39.53
Bill Pmt -Check  08/29/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1 1/2 Heiner ST----New Improv Projects--AUG -6.08
Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL 3500 Milam St} Holman St - ----New Improvement Projects--AUG -33.37
Check 09/03/2025 ACH PUBLIC STORAGE
Check 09/03/2025 ACH PUBLIC STORAGE MPC STORAGE UNIT PAYMENT FOR UNIT#A332 - SEPTEMBER 2025
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {415 Gray St} - Bagby Park- AUGUST
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL980 1/2 Hadley ST--New Improvement Projects-AUGUST
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects-AUGUST
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Webster ST--New Improvement Projects AUGUS,
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1010 1/2 Winbern St} -New Improvement Projects AU R
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1011 1/2 Drew ST--New Improvement Projects-AUG -221.37
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1020 1/2 Francis St} -New Improvement Projects -53.53
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1050 1/2 Anita ST--New Improvement Projects-, -47.51
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1201 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Pr -6.38
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1625 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement -23.56
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {2050 1/2 Brazos St} - Bagby Street--- -120.34
Bill Pmt -Check  09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2401 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1812-9016 JULY ST 2025 -1,396.22
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2402 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1813-0014 JULY & AUGUST 2025 -2,156.92
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2211 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-4038 AUGUST 2025 -19.26
Bill Pmt -Check  09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2600 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0311-3047 AUGUST 2025 -11.70
Bill Pmt -Check  09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 3011 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-5035 JULY & AUGUST 2025 -389.98
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 4015 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-6033 AUGUST 2025 -19.26
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 811 Holman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0236-8018 AUGUST 2025 -24.63
Bill Pmt -Check  09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 1300 Holman Street 1/2 B ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0228-2011 AUGUST 2025 -2,272.03
Bill Pmt -Check 09/04/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 1619 Holman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0105-4015 AUGUST 2025 -11.49
Bill Pmt -Check 09/08/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 410 PIERCE ST STE 355 Water bill acct#8599-0000-7013 07.01.25 - 09.30.25 -1,081.30
Bill Pmt -Check 09/10/2025 6114 ASCAP Music performance licenses to publically play musuc in the Parks - -315.56
Bill Pmt -Check 09/10/2025 6115 Ayden William Trejo DJ Services - TYT Music September 2025 -300.00
Bill Pmt -Check  09/10/2025 6116 BlueTriton Brands Inc. 07.25.2025 - 08.24.2025 -201.96
Bill Pmt -Check 09/10/2025 6117 Dj Mav Holdings AV Team Hours August 2025 -2,750.00
Bill Pmt -Check 09/10/2025 6118 FIRETRON, INC. Misc Repair - Outside Tamper - September 2025 -1,339.00
Bill Pmt -Check 09/10/2025 6119 FOSTER FENCE LTD. Broken Chain Repair - August 2025 -175.00
Bill Pmt -Check  09/10/2025 6120 Holders Pest Solutions -731.27

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

Page 1



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Check Register

Accrual Basis

As of December 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Bill Pmt -Check  09/10/2025 6121 Houston Business Journal Midtown Park & Bagby Park Landscape & Field Maintenance August 2025 -528.00
Bill Pmt -Check  09/10/2025 6122 Irene Valentin Hispanic Heritage Month Mosaic DIY Art/Coasters- August 2025 -1,350.00
Bill Pmt -Check  09/10/2025 6123 Landscape Art, Inc. Bagby Park Water Fountain July 2025 -8,307.00
Bill Pmt -Check  09/10/2025 6124 Meyerland Glass & Mirror Co M & Q Broken Glass Elevator Vestibule July 2025 -4,241.11
Bill Pmt -Check MLN Service Company Troubleshoot all exhaust fans that are not running- belt replacements August 2025 -3,855.47
Bill Pmt -Check Morgan Newton Event Support August 13-15, 2025 -162.50
Bill Pmt -Check Oakmont Maintenance & Rental (2) Special Event Portable Restrooms; (1) Handicap Restroom (1) Hand Washing Statio... -932.00
Bill Pmt -Check Placer Labs, Inc Platform Access -13,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check Ramiro Delgado -138.05
Bill Pmt -Chec] Schindler Elevator Corporation Preventative Maintenance 08.01.2025 - 07.31.2026 -7,200.00
Bill Pmt -Che AL Security Solutions LLC Security Officer with Vehicle 06.18.2025 -188.75
Bill Pmt -@ don Williams -562.50
Bill P andscape Services March Irrigation Repairs -5,222.70
Bill R 09/10/2025 ) Smith Expense Reimbursement: Mileage for District 08.25 - 09.05.2025 -108.50
j 09/10/2025 6135 k Management, LLC Midtown Park's Parking Garage Operating Expenses -July 2025 -1,149.48
09/10/2025 6136 m Analytics LLC Video Monitoring 08/01/2025 - 08/31/2025 Bagby Park Monitoring Fee- including off-ho... -650.00
-Check 09/10/2025 6137 v Holdings International Women's Festival August 2025 -1,800.00

09/10/2025 6138
09/10/2025
09/10/2025
09/17/2025
09/17/2025
Bill P 09/17/2025

anagement Services LP

Bill Pmt -Check
Bill Pmt -Check

Bill Pmt -Check  09/17/2025 6148

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025 Morgan Newton

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025 PopLife Popping

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025 SEAL Security S s LLC
Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025 6157 SMC Landscap,

Bill Pmt -Check  09/17/2025 6158 THR Enterprise ba JNE Gre.
Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025 6159 Twirl Cotton C;

Bill Pmt -Check  09/17/2025 6160 WELLS FARG

Bill Pmt -Check 09/17/2025 6161 Landscape A

Bill Pmt -Check  09/22/2025 ACH

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6162

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6163 F

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6164 City of Houston -

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6165 COMCAST BUSINE

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6166 David T. Thomas

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6167 Dj Mav Holdings

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6168 Fit Lifestyle Enterprise LLC
Bill Pmt -Check  09/24/2025 6169 Goode Systems & Consulting, Inc.
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6170 KILGORE Industries, LP

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6171 Lake Management Services LP
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6172 Minor Design Group, Inc.

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6173 NEVA Corporation

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6174 Oakmont Maintenance & Rental
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6175 Ramiro Delgado

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6176 SEAL Security Solutions LLC
Bill Pmt -Check  09/24/2025 6177 SHINE UR LIGHT LLC

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6178 SMC Landscape Services

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6179 Steven Smith

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 6180 Zaladium Analytics LLC

Bill Pmt -Check  09/24/2025 6181 Comcast

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy}

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St}

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check  09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St}

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St}

Bill Pmt -Check  09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St}

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement}
Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St}

Bill Pmt -Check  09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy}

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {MIdtown Park}

Bill Pmt -Check 09/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St}

Bill Pmt -Check 09/25/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6182 Co-Create Strategies, LLC
Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6183 Landscape Art, Inc.

Bill Pmt -Check  10/01/2025 6184 Layla's Barkery, LLC

Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6185 Midtown Management District
Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6186 MLN Service Company

Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6187 Morgan Newton

Bill Pmt -Check  10/01/2025 6188 OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6189 Papas Haddad Ventures

Bill Pmt -Check  10/01/2025 6190 Rebekah Tee

Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6191 Rocio Rodriguez

Bill Pmt -Check 10/01/2025 6192 Antonio Munoz Gonzalez
Payment 10/01/2025 10949  MIDTOWN MANAGEMENT DIST.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

VOID: 0.00

Bagby Parking Lot Driveway Gate Repair - August 2025 -375.00
Social Media Marketing June Retainer FINAL Payment -1,586.66
Vendor Contracts-August 2025 -2,062.50
-1,892.28

Movie Night September 2025 -2,100.00
Operator Control Box Repair - August 20, 2025 -175.00
Pressure Washing @ 2811 Travis- 5 Stairwells- August 2025 -850.00
PC Marketing Retainer September 2025 -2,635.14
D: 0.00
ountain Weekly Maintenance - Chlorine September 2025 -140.40
-1,991.88

# APIN 09/01/2025-09/01/2026 { Renewal Policy Insurance Invoice} -44,432.17
ogram Staff - August 2025 -262.50
exhaust fan serving the fountain pump room- fan motor and blade replacements ... -3,491.01

t Support August 26-September 07, 2025 -575.00

OID: Condenser Coil Leak Repairs 410 Pierce St- September 2025 0.00
SEPTEMBER 2025 @ Bagby Park {Goodie Bags} -200.00
Security Officer with Vehicle 08.01.25 -08.31.25 -24,366.00
Field Maintenance Services _, 2025 Legacy & New Improvement projects -31,000.00
Garbage (4) Pick-Ups A 2025 -640.00
TAKEAWAY BAGS 025 -98.75
-8,854.86
-1,310.38
-85.96
-300.00
-74.00
-122.91
-313.60
-62.63
-2,100.00
-400.00
-618.00
-347.50
-5,542.40
-3,050.00
-6,312.75
-932.00
-126.70
-377.50
-175.00
-31,000.00
-94.50
-450.00
-1,505.73
-1,378.81

September 2025

0.01.25- 13.31.25
70 {Mitown Park Phones Lines} Service - SEP 13 - OCT ...
Jlies Reimbursements
ptember 2025

charge System 410
dicap Restroom (1)

Video Monitoring -hour and armed res
Ethernet September
ELECTRICAL BILL {415 Gray St} - Bagby Park- SEPTEMBER

ELECTRICAL BILL 500 1/2 ELGIN ST--New Improvement Projects--SEP
ELECTRICAL BILL902 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects SEP
ELECTRICAL BILL920 1/2 Winbern ST--New Improvement Projects SEP
ELECTRICAL BILL {970 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects-- SEP
ELECTRICAL BILL980 1/2 Hadley ST--New Improvement Projects-SEPTEMBE|
ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects-SEPTE
ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Webster ST--New Improvement Projects SEPT]
ELECTRICAL BILL {1010 1/2 Winbern St} -New Improvement Projects

12/2025 Bagby Park - in

ELECTRICAL BILL1011 1/2 Drew ST--New Improvement Projects-S -238.28
ELECTRICAL BILL {1020 1/2 Francis St} -New Improvement Proje -33.56
ELECTRICAL BILL 1050 1/2 Anita ST--New Improvement Projec] -54.16
ELECTRICAL BILL {1201 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement -6.23
ELECTRICAL BILL 1551 1/2 Heiner ST----New Improvemel -6.08
ELECTRICAL BILL {1625 1/2 Holman St} -New Improveme -26.10
ELECTRICAL BILL {2050 1/2 Brazos St} - Bagby Street---SE -149.53
ELECTRICAL BILL {2911 Travis St MIDTOWN PARK} - SEPTEMBER 2025 -10,110.16
ELECTRICAL BILL 3500 Milam St} Holman St - ----New Improvement Projects--SEPTE... -57.48
410 PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6480-7743 SEP 2025 -613.33
MPC Event Photography September 2025 -1,250.00
Project # 5349 August 2025 -62,179.95
Treats for Pets September 2025 -224.50
Quarterly Reimbursable Shared Marketing Expenses June - August 2025 -1,013.73
-12,108.82

Event Support September 09-September 21, 2025 -350.00
MAINTENANCE SERVICE CONTRACT CHARGES 10/1/2025 - 12/31/2025 -1,162.17
Teach You Tuesday Offsite - Workshop @ Bagby Park { Tuesday Oct 7, 2025 } -1,750.00
Yappy Hour Travis Park Drawings for Dogs September 2025 -150.00
Yappy Hour September 26, 2025 -151.00
-613.28

35,831.72

Page 2



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Check Register

Accrual Basis

As of December 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Payment 10/01/2025 11954 MidtownRedevelopmentAuthority 39,461.82
Payment 10/01/2025 11946  MidtownRedevelopmentAuthority 95,130.30
Payment 10/03/2025 10923  MIDTOWN MANAGEMENT DIST. 35,751.27
Check 10/03/2025 ACH PUBLIC STORAGE -415.00
Check PUBLIC STORAGE MPC STORAGE UNIT PAYMENT FOR UNIT#A332 - OCTOBER 2025 -451.00
Bill Pmt -Check City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 811 Holman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0236-8018 SEPTEMBER 2025 -12.76
Bill Pmt -Check City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 1300 Holman Street 1/2 B ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0228-2011 SEPTEMBER 2025 -752.93
Bill Pmt -Check City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 1619 Holman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0105-4015 SEPTEMBER 2025 -11.49
Bill Pmt -Check Austen Meza -1,400.00
Bill Pmt -Chec] BlueTriton Brands Inc. 08.25.2025 - 09.24.2025 -201.96
Bill Pmt -Che RAZALIAN CULTURAL INSTITU... -150.00
Bill Pmt -@ 's Frozen Delights Yappy Hour September 26, 2025 -300.00
Bill P AYNE MARTIN, JR MPC Events and Programs September 2025 -450.00

ill B 10/08/2025 6198 -2,395.90
10/08/2025 6199 Park Program Staff - September & October 2025 -325.00
10/08/2025 6200 Newton Event Support September 26 & October 05, 2025 -262.50
-Check 10/08/2025 6201 ont Maintenance & Rental (2) Special Event Portable Restrooms; (1) Handicap Restroom (1) Hand Washing Statio... -932.00
Pmt -Check  10/08/2025 6202 Mileage 09.22.25 - 10.05.25 -124.60
Pmt -Check 10/08/2025 Security Officer with Vehicle 09.23.2025 -188.75
10/08/2025 -487.50
10/08/2025 Expense Reimbursement: Mileage for District 09.22 - 10.03.2025 -112.00
10/08/2025 Garbage (4) Pick-Ups SEPTEMBER 2025 -640.00
10/08/2025 Sept & Oct 2025 -287.50
0/08/20 Video Monitoring 09/01/2025 - 09/30/2025 Bagby Park Monitoring Fee- including off-ho... -650.00
thernet October 2025 -1,605.73
K GRAY ST {BAGBY PARK} Water bill acct#4328-6453-0014 SEP 2025 -1,015.43
Bill Pmt -Check PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6570-6357 SEPTEMBER 2025 -214.21
Bill Pmt -Check  10/09/2025 \Travis St Midtown Park Water bill acct# 4328-7435-7078 SEPTEMBER 2025 -130.29
Bill Pmt -Check  10/09/2025 AIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-4038 SEPTEMBER 2025 -19.26
Bill Pmt -Check  10/09/2025 AIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0311-3047 SEPTEMBER 2025 -11.70
Bill Pmt -Check  10/09/2025 AIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-5035 SEPTEMBER 2025 -72.22
Bill Pmt -Check  10/09/2025 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-6033 SEPTEMBER 2025 -19.26
Bill Pmt -Check  10/09/2025 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1812-9016 SEPTEMBER 2025 -1,330.02
Bill Pmt -Check  10/09/2025 02 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1813-0014 SEPTEMBER 2025 -1,038.74
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 Austen Meza Pop Up on the Plaza DJ Payment October 05, 2025 -700.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6211 Construction EG -3,916.12
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6212 Movie Night October 2025 -2,100.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6213 -380.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6214 -1,295.50
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6215 -4,150.69
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6216 -3,678.63
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6217 ROOM TOILET REPAIRS SEP 2025 -540.23
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6218 {Goodie Bags} -250.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6219 -180.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6220 Twirl Cotton Candy R 2025 -118.50
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6221 Zaladium Analytics & -900.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/15/2025 6222 CENTERPOINT ENER -42.98
Bill Pmt -Check 10/15/2025 6223 Holders Pest Solutions -3,438.97
Payment 10/16/2025 11122  MIDTOWN MANAGEMENT DIST. 30,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6224 COMCAST BUSINESS rvice - OCT 13- NOV ... -313.60
Bill Pmt -Check 10/21/2025 6225 DEWAYNE MARTIN, JR -275.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/21/2025 6226 Dj Mav Holdings -3,232.41
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6227 Fit Lifestyle Enterprise LLC -800.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6228 Goode Systems & Consulting, Inc. -1,419.98
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6229 Houston Business Journal Maintenance Augus -528.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/21/2025 6230 La Calle Tacos -3,110.42
Bill Pmt -Check 10/21/2025 6231 Lake Management Services LP -5,411.10
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6232 Landscape Art, Inc. VOID 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6233 Megan Kingsley Park Progrant' Staff - -225.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6234 Ramiro Delgado Mileage 10.06.25 - -124.60
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6235 SEAL Security Solutions LLC -25,671.87
Bill Pmt -Check  10/21/2025 6236 SMC Landscape Services Field Maintenance S es -September 2025 Legacy Improvement Projects -31,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/21/2025 6237 Steven Smith Expense Reimbursement: Mileage for District 10.06 - 10.17.2025
Check 10/21/2025 6238 WELLS FARGO {CC} Wells Fargo CC Payment for statement 9/13/25 - 10/14/25
Check 10/22/2025 6239 Space City Events, LLC REFUND less deductions: Park Security Deposit - April 26, 2025" OMG Festival " Even
Check 10/22/2025 6240 FLAMART REFUND less deductions: Park Security Deposit - Sept 21, 2025" El Festival de la S
Check 10/22/2025 6241 Roque Foundation REFUND less deductions: Park Security Deposit - Sept 6, 2025" Women's Internati
Check 10/22/2025 6242 Future Fortunes, Inc Licensing Booking Deposit Reimbursement 50% of Booking Fee Forfeited-Balan
Check 10/22/2025 6243 La Calle Tacos REFUND less deductions: Park Security Deposit - November 2022" Taco Eatj
Bill Pmt -Check  10/22/2025 6244 Jacqulyn Joy Saxton 30 Copies at Wholesale Price @ $9.95 each Joy Goes to Mexico Books Jul
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {415 Gray St} - Bagby Park- OCTOBER .
Bill Pmt -Check 10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 500 1/2 ELGIN ST--New Improvement Projects--O, -5.77
Bill Pmt -Check 10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL902 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects, -27.27
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL920 1/2 Winbern ST--New Improvement Proje; -31.34
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {970 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement P, -43.94
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL980 1/2 Hadley ST--New Improvement P, -80.40
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement -30.15
Bill Pmt -Check 10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Webster ST--New Improvement P -54.39
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1010 1/2 Winbern St} -New Improvement Projects OCT -32.40
Bill Pmt -Check 10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1011 1/2 Drew ST--New Improvement Projects-OCT -236.57
Bill Pmt -Check 10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1020 1/2 Francis St} -New Improvement Projects OCT -33.76
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1050 1/2 Anita ST--New Improvement Projects-OCT -56.62
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1201 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects-OCT -6.38
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1551 1/2 Heiner ST----New Improvement Projects--OCT -6.23
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1625 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects---ELECTRICAL ... -27.30
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {2050 1/2 Brazos St} - Bagby Street---OCT -131.74
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT {MIdtown Park} ELECTRICAL BILL {2911 Travis St MIDTOWN PARK} - OCT 2025 -7,348.36
Bill Pmt -Check  10/24/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL 3500 Milam St} Holman St - ----New Improvement Projects--OCT -34.91
Bill Pmt -Check  10/29/2025 6245 Antonio Munoz Gonzalez -651.18
Bill Pmt -Check  10/29/2025 6246 Ayden William Trejo DJ Services - Yappy Hour Music October 2025 -300.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/29/2025 6247 Israel Munoz Salsa Fest September 2025 -360.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/29/2025 6248 Juan Munoz Navarro MPC Support August - October 2025 -1,460.00
Bill Pmt -Check 10/29/2025 6249 Maria Gonzalez Trejo MPC Support September - October 2025 -1,460.00

No assurance is provided on these financial statements

Page 3



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Check Register

Accrual Basis

As of December 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Bill Pmt -Check 10/29/2025 6250 Pop Shop America Holiday Classes October 2025 -1,508.44
Bill Pmt -Check  10/29/2025 6251 Rocio Rodriguez Yappy Hour October 2025 -150.00
Bill Pmt -Check  10/29/2025 6252 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Security Officer with Vehicle 10.17.2025 -188.75
Bill Pmt -Check  10/29/2025 6253 SHINE UR LIGHT LLC Event: Sound Meditation - October 8, 2025 @ Baldwin Park -175.00
Bill Pmt -Check Xavier Rojas MPC Support September - October 2025 -600.00
Bill Pmt -Check City of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 402 PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6570-6357 OCTOBER 2025 -115.51
Bill Pmt -Check City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2401 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1812-9016 OCTOBER 2025 -1,237.34
Bill Pmt -Check City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2402 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1813-0014 OCTOBER 2025 -999.02
Bill Pmt -Check City of Houston-Water Dept. {Travis} 2905 Travis St Midtown Park Water bill acct# 4328-7435-7078 OCTOBER 2025 -130.29
Bill Pmt -Chec] ity of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 415 GRAY ST {BAGBY PARK} Water bill acct#4328-6453-0014 OCT 2025 -1,187.31
Bill Pmt -Che of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 811 Holman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0236-8018 OCTOBER 2025 -12.76
Bill Pmt -@ of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 1300 Holman Street 1/2 B ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0228-2011 OCTOBER 2025 -766.17
Bill P Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 1619 Holman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0105-4015 OCTOBER 2025 -11.49
ill B 10/31/2025 ACH Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2211 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-4038 OCTOBER 2025 -19.26
10/31/2025 ACH Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2600 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0311-3047 OCTOBER 2025 -11.70
10/31/2025 ACH Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 3011 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-5035 OCTOBER 2025 -19.26
-Check 10/31/2025 ACH Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 4015 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-6033 OCTOBER 2025 -19.26
11/04/2025 ACH -415.00
11/04/2025 MPC STORAGE UNIT PAYMENT FOR UNIT#A332 - NOVEMBER 2025 -451.00
11/05/2025 09.25.2025 - 10.24.2025 -201.96
11/05/2025 Second Progress billing for Financial Statement Audit {12 months} ended Dec. 31, 2024 -4,000.00
11/05/2025 -220.00
11/05/2025 Commercial Plumbing Service Call 10.20.25 -2,432.44
05/20 (2) Special Event Portable Restrooms; (1) Handicap Restroom (1) Hand Washing Statio... -932.00
halk on the Block {November 15, 2025 } -1,365.00
K -377.50
Bill Pmt -Check nt Management - Sept & Oct 2025 -325.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/05/2025 Monitoring 10/01/2025 - 10/31/2025 Bagby Park Monitoring Fee- including off-ho... -650.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/07/2025 RCE Water bill acct#5101-6480-7743 OCT 2025 -652.81
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 on the Block November 2025 -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 se Reimbursement: 10.24.2025 -31.66
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2025 Ayden William rvices - TYT Music November 4, 2025 -300.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 BRAZALIAN CU -150.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 Bridgett D. Lueva Ve Hand Drawn Caricatures of Guests and Pets Yappy Hour 10.24.25 -300.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 City of Houston- OID: Permit Renewal- Houston Technology Center Nov 2025 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/10/2025 CRAIG CARTER "CHALK ON THE BLOCK" Pavement Art Performance & Supplies -November 2025 -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6271 Danielle Johnsg Chalk on the Block - Novembe -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6272 Darla Lovett -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6273 David Rychlik -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6274 j i -5,250.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6275 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6276 -3,103.94
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6277 -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6278 -1,500.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6279 Isabel Vallecillo -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6280 Katie Cunningham -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6281 Lake Management Sel -5,581.40
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6282 Maria Rychlik -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6283 Millennium Age, LLC -550.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6284 MLN Service Company -915.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6285 Nasha Scott -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6286 NEVA Corporation -618.75
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6287 Ramiro Delgado -123.90
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6288 Rock Solid Events LLC -975.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6289 SARAH WEATHERLY 15, 2025 -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6290 Steven Smith -88.90
Bill Pmt -Check  11/10/2025 6291 Studio Jexxi -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6292 Chamberlin Houston, LLC -2,989.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6293 Comcast -1,505.73
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6294 COMCAST BUSINESS Service - NOV 13 - -313.60
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6295 Dj Mav Holdings Micro-Grant: Loop -1,135.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6296 Elisabet Gonzalez-Barranco Chalk on thr Block N -600.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6297 Padron & Co
Bill Pmt -Check 11/19/2025 6298 Landscape Art, Inc.
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6299 Morgan Newton
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6300 Ramiro Delgado Mileage 11.03.25 - 11.14.25
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6301 Rebekah Tee Chalk on the Block November 2025
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6302 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Security Officer with Vehicle 10.01.25 -10.31.25
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6303 Shawn Artis Chalk on the Block Artist November 2025
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6304 SMC Landscape Services
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6305 Sonya R. Hill Chalk on the Block Artist November 2025
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6306 Steven Smith Expense Reimbursement: Mileage for District 11.03 - 11.14.2025
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6307 THR Enterprises, Inc dba JNE Gre...  Garbage (5) Pick-Ups OCTOBER 2025 -800.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6308 Winpark Management, LLC Midtown Park's Parking Garage Operating Expenses -August 20, -4,497.90
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6309 Holders Pest Solutions -4,132.92
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6310 Lake Management Services LP Rain Fountain Weekly Maintenance - Chlorine November 1 -141.70
Bill Pmt -Check  11/19/2025 6311 Green Team Services Pressure Washing @ 2811 Travis- 5 Stairwells- October 20: -850.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/21/2025 ACH CENTERPOINT ENERGY VOID: 410 Pierce St Gas Charges- November 2025 0.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6312 BAKER'S SAFE & LOCK CO.., INC. -1,306.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6313 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 410 Pierce St Gas Charges- November 2025 -47.02
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6314 Construction ECO Service Il Inc. {Material & Services}Monthly Landscape Maintenance August 2025 -2,023.84
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6315 Dj Mav Holdings Pop Up on The Plaza Lighting November 2025 -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6316 Holders Pest Solutions FLEA SERVICE- 415 GREY ST OCT 2025 -64.27
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6317 Landscape Art, Inc. -4,731.20
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6318 Megan Kingsley Park Program Staff - November 2025 -437.50
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6319 SEAL Security Solutions LLC -951.50
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6320 Sheldon Williams Event Management - November 2025 -375.00
Bill Pmt -Check 11/25/2025 6321 Zaladium Analytics LLC Video Monitoring 10/13- 11/12/2025 Bagby Park - including off-hour and armed response -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/25/2025 6322 Landscape Art, Inc. Project # 5349 July 2025 -48,087.48
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {415 Gray St} - Bagby Park- NOVEMBER -1,297.29
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 500 1/2 ELGIN ST--New Improvement Projects--NOV -5.94
Bill Pmt -Check 11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL902 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects NOV -28.86
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL920 1/2 Winbern ST--New Improvement Projects NOV -33.53
No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 4



Accrual Basis

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Check Register
As of December 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {970 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects-- NOV -46.50
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL980 1/2 Hadley ST--New Improvement Projects-NOV -81.00
Bill Pmt -Check  11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects-NOV -29.92
Bill Pmt -Check 11/26/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Webster ST--New Improvement Projects NOV -54.63
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1010 1/2 Winbern St} -New Improvement Projects NOV -33.08
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1011 1/2 Drew ST--New Improvement Projects-NOV -224.90
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1020 1/2 Francis St} -New Improvement Projects NOV -33.99
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1050 1/2 Anita ST--New Improvement Projects-NOV -57.64
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1201 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects-NOV -6.24
Bill Pmt -Chec] RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1551 1/2 Heiner ST----New Improvement Projects-NOV -6.08
Bill Pmt -Che IANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1625 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects---ELECTRICAL ... -26.27
Bill Pmt -@ ANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {2050 1/2 Brazos St} - Bagby Street---NOV -139.93
Bill Pi ELECTRICAL BILL {2911 Travis St MIDTOWN PARK} - NOV 2025 -6,772.74
ill B 11/26/2025 ACH ELECTRICAL BILL 3500 Milam St} Holman St - ----New Improvement Projects--NOV -36.54
11/26/2025 6323 NE MARTIN, JR MPC Events and Programs November 2025 -187.50
12/02/2025 6324 Pop Up on the Plaza DJ Payment November 16, 2025 -700.00
-Check 12/02/2025 6325 do C Ramirez Portacan Rental 11.22.25 -200.00
Pmt -Check  12/02/2025 6326 Mileage 11.17.25 - 11.28.25 -98.70
Pmt -Check 12/02/2025 -566.25
12/02/2025 Expense Reimbursement: Mileage for District 11.17 - 11.28.2025 -80.50
12/02/2025 -6,097.97
12/02/2025 -1,950.00
12/02/2025 Video Monitoring 11/01/2025 - 11/30/2025 Bagby Park Monitoring Fee- including off-ho... -650.00
04/20 2905 Travis St Midtown Park Water bill acct# 4328-7435-7078 NOVEMBER 2025 -130.29
402 PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6570-6357 NOVEMBER 2025 -174.73
K 211 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-4038 NOVEMBER 2025 -19.26
Bill Pmt -Check @ MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0311-3047 NOVEMBER 2025 -11.70
Bill Pmt -Check  12/04/2025 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-6033 NOVEMBER 2025 -19.26
Bill Pmt -Check  12/04/2025 olman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0105-4015 NOVEMBER 2025 -11.49
Check 12/04/2025 -457.00
Check 12/04/2025 TORAGE UNIT PAYMENT FOR UNIT#A332 - DECEMBER 2025 -494.00
Bill Pmt -Check 12/10/2025 Antonio Munoz -1,985.71
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 Services - TYT Music December 2, 2025 -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 BlueTriton Brand 0725.2025 - 11.24.2025 -201.96
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 BRAZALIAN CU " CAPOEIRA FAMILY CLASS " -Nov 15, 2025 -75.00
Bill Pmt -Check 12/10/2025 6269 City of Houston: Permit Renewal- Houston Technology Center Nov 2025 -1,174.92
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6337 Co-Create Strat MPC Event Photography O -625.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6338 -3,916.12
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6339 Midtown Park Al -2,900.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6340 November 8 -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6341 -220.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6342 ers Suites 110, 231-233 September 2025 -906.25
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6343 is- 5 Stairwells- November 2025 -850.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6344 Padron & Co e ber 2025 -2,902.22
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6345 Irene Valentin t Workshop-Nov 2025 -1,350.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6346 Juan Munoz Navari F -1,780.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6347 KILGORE Industries, -5,653.42
Bill Pmt -Check 12/10/2025 6348 Lake Management Services LP -11,778.96
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6349 Landscape Art, Inc. -4,764.62
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6350 Marcos Hernandez -400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6351 Maria Gonzalez Trejo -2,260.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6352 Mechelle Phillips -2,839.44
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6353 Oakmont Maintenance & Rental ashing Statio... -932.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6354 Reynolds Electrical Services Ventu... -431.20
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6355 Rubycela Rodriguez -675.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6356 SEAL Security Solutions LLC -443.00
Bill Pmt -Check 12/10/2025 6357 SMC Landscape Services -1,656.62
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6358 Xavier Rojas MPC Supps -1,400.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/10/2025 6359 Holders Pest Solutions -2,031.01
Bill Pmt -Check 12/16/2025 6360 Ariel Munoz International Wom $20/hour 09.06.25 -320.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6361 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 410 Pierce St Gas -141.13
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6362 Co-Create Strategies, LLC -1,150.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6363 Comcast Ethernet December 2025
Bill Pmt -Check 12/16/2025 6364 Fit Lifestyle Enterprise LLC December 13, 2025 Classes
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6365 Lemonade Retreat, LLC TYT December 2025
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6366 Mechelle Phillips
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6367 Midtown Management District Quarterly Reimbursable Expenses for Monthly Newsletter and FB Post
Bill Pmt -Check 12/16/2025 6368 Midtown Redevelopment Authority CPA Services - July, Aug and Sept 2025 CPA Services
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6369 Reynolds Electrical Services Ventu... Misc. Repairs 2811 Travis Street December 2025
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6370 Roque Hernandez Fall Chalk on the Block
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6371 SEAL Security Solutions LLC Security Officer with Vehicle 11.01.25 -11.30.25
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6372 SHINE UR LIGHT LLC Event: Sound Meditation - Nov 12, & Dec 10, 2025 @ Baldwin Park -350.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6373 Steven Smith Expense Reimbursement: Mileage for District 12.01 - 12.12.2025 -101.50
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6374 Zaladium Analytics LLC Video Monitoring 11/13- 12/12/2025 Bagby Park - including off-h; ed response -450.00
Bill Pmt -Check  12/16/2025 6375 Midtown Redevelopment Authority Expense Reimbursement Quarter Ending September 2025 -12,820.80
Bill Pmt -Check 12/16/2025 6376 Midtown Redevelopment Authority Texas Capital Bank Fees for MPC June-Oct2025 -1,060.65
Bill Pmt -Check  12/18/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 811 Holman Street 1/2 ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0236-8 -12.76
Bill Pmt -Check  12/18/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Holm... 1300 Holman Street 1/2 B ESPL Water bill acct# 9000-0228-2011 NOVEMBER 2025 -792.65
Bill Pmt -Check  12/18/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2401 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1812-9016 NOVEMBER 2025 -1,382.98
Bill Pmt -Check 12/18/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 2402 CAROLINE ST Water bill acct#9000-1813-0014 NOVEMBER 2025 -1,051.98
Bill Pmt -Check  12/18/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Main} 3011 MAIN 1/2 Water bill acct#4328-0203-5035 NOVEMBER 2025 -19.26
Bill Pmt -Check  12/23/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1551 1/2 Heiner ST----New Improvement Projects-DEC -6.24
Bill Pmt -Check  12/23/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {415 Gray St} - Bagby Park- DECEMBER -1,289.26
Bill Pmt -Check  12/23/2025 ACH RELIANT {Legacy} ELECTRICAL BILL {2050 1/2 Brazos St} - Bagby Street---DEC -161.59
Bill Pmt -Check  12/23/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 500 1/2 ELGIN ST--New Improvement Projects--DEC -5.94
Bill Pmt -Check  12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 410 PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6480-7743 NOV 2025 -634.34
Bill Pmt -Check  12/23/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 410 PIERCE ST STE 355 Water bill acct#8599-0000-7013 10.01.25 - 12.31.25 -1,081.30
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH City of Houston-Water Dept. {Lega... 402 PIERCE Water bill acct#5101-6570-6357 DECEMBER 2025 -154.99
Payment 12/29/2025 11224  MIDTOWN MANAGEMENT DIST. 63,791.42
Payment 12/29/2025 11225  MIDTOWN MANAGEMENT DIST. 56,555.90
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL902 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects DEC -34.17
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL920 1/2 Winbern ST--New Improvement Projects DEC -40.53
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {970 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects-- DEC -56.63
No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 5



MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

Check Register
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2025
Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL 3500 Milam St} Holman St - ----New Improvement Projects--DEC -43.73
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL980 1/2 Hadley ST--New Improvement Projects-DEC -93.36
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1201 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects-DEC -6.39
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/2025 ACH RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1625 1/2 Holman St} -New Improvement Projects---ELECTRICAL ... -28.56
Bill Pmt -Check  12/29/202 RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Isabella ST--New Improvement Projects-DEC -34.02
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1010 1/2 Webster ST--New Improvement Projects DEC -62.09
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1010 1/2 Winbern St} -New Improvement Projects DEC -33.86
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL1011 1/2 Drew ST--New Improvement Projects-DEC -242.60
Bill Pmt -Check RELIANT- {Holman St} ELECTRICAL BILL {1020 1/2 Francis St} -New Improvement Projects DEC -38.27
Bill Pmt -Chec] RELIANT {New Improvement} ELECTRICAL BILL 1050 1/2 Anita ST--New Improvement Projects-DEC -66.05
Bill Pmt -Che 3 IANT {MlIdtown Park} ELECTRICAL BILL {2911 Travis St MIDTOWN PARK} - DEC 2025 -6,737.42

Aug - Dec 25 -604,820.15

No assurance is provided on these financial statements Page 6






Total Income

Expense

Interest
Property Managemen
Parks Rental
Parking Garage
Reserves

Total Other

Employee Related
Park Furniture & Equipment
Insurance

Maintenance & Repairs
Adminstrative
Communication Services
Office Equipment

Computer Equipment
Professional Services

Park Programming & Events
Utilities

Conferences

Travel

Depreciation Expense

Total Expense

Net Income

Midtown Parks Conservancy
Budget Summary
January - December 2026

Variance to 2025 Actuals

2025
Actuals
2026 Budget 2025 Budget (Unaudited) $ %
675,000 344,236 (330,764) 51.0%
1,725,009 1,782,420 57,411 103.3%
26,098 10 (26,088) 0.0%
2,426,107 2,126,667 (299,440) 87.7%
10,000 29,153 19,153 291.5%
261,900 203,396 (58,504) 77.7%
75,000 39,085 (35,915) 52.1%
70,000 18,000 (52,000) 25.7%
(127,267) 69.5%
(426,707) 85.0%
47,411 106.5%

63.8%

120.8%

306,768 95.1%

17,500 89.7%

10,000 91.5%

5,000 90.0%

9,000 159.8%

507,600 548,00

158,500 156,572
126,000 220,000 163,548
3,000 3,000 3,571
40,000 25,000 29,641
5,000 - 4,000
2,023,368 2,843,007 2,743,955

67,632 - (327,655) 100.0%




owndmprovement and



25

Table of Contents . .

Page

REPORT



OR’S REPORT

Development Corporation
vancy

atements of Midtown Improvement and Development
e Conservancy), which comprise the statements of
3, and the related statements of activities, functional
and the related notes to the financial statements.

red to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
as of December 31, 20 nd 2023, and the changes in its net
ars then ended in ith accounting principles generally

financial position of the Conser
assets and its cash flows for th
accepted in the United States o

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditin in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those stan i
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statem
independent of the Conservancy and to meet our o i e with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our au i

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statemen

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statem
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, a
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparati
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether,
error.

fraud or

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Conservancy’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includesf@ur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance efore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
adards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
tatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
on, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
ents are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
Jate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on

dividually or in the ag
the financial statemep

enerally accepted auditing standards, we:

include exa regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of
that are appropriate in the pose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Conse i [ dingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting p
accounting estimates made by management, as V
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are
that raise substantial doubt about the Conserva
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mat
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control r
matters that we identified during the audit.

Houston, Texas
[DATE]



28

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2024 2023

Assets

$ 576947 S 735,992

309,969 248,314
Total current asset 886,916 984,306
21,887 -

Total asset: $ 908,803 S 984,306

Liabilities and
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued $ 221,099 S 333,540

Total liabilities 221,099 333,540
Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

100,078
550,688

Total net assets 650,766

Total liabilities and net assets 06

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-3-



29

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Statement of Activities

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

S 1,027,434 S 1,060,198 $ 2,087,632

688,903 - 688,903

Facilities revenues 2,202 - 2,202
Investment inco 10,775 - 10,775
923,834 (923,834) -

2,653,148 136,364 2,789,512

1,045,363 - 1,045,363

Park series - 1,025,759
Park - art - 38,390
Midtown Park garage - 339,257

Total program services 2,448,769
Supporting services

Management and general 303,805

Total supporting services 303,805

Total expenses 52,574

Change in net assets (99,426) 136,364

Net assets at beginning of year 100,078 550,688

Net assets at end of year S 652 S 687,052

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-4 -



30

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Statement of Activities

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
S 870,985 S 913,174 S 1,784,159
667,539 - 667,539
12,037 - 12,037

1,267,200  (1,267,200) -

2,817,761 (354,026) 2,463,735

Expenses
Program services

Legacy and n 940,044 - 940,044

Park series 1,114,494 - 1,114,494

Park - art - 36,493

Midtown Park garage - 335,789
Total program services - 2,426,820
Supporting services

Management and general 286,720 286,720

Total supporting services 286,720

Total expenses

Change in net assets 104,221 026)

Net assets at beginning of year (4,143) 904,714

Net assets at end of year S 100,078 S 550,688 S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-5.-



31

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Statement of Functional Expenses

ecember 31, 2024

Supporting
Program Services Services
Midtown Parking Programs Management
ark Series - Art Garage Subtotal and General Total Expenses

Salaries and benefits S 30,410 S 121,274 S 581,848 $ 107,055 S 688,903
Services and professional fees 7,980 206,080 610,344 94,734 705,078
Maintenance expenses - 11,903 1,149,882 21,952 1,171,834

Office and occupancy - - 3,575 19,609 23,184
Office expenses - 3,534 9,229 12,763
Travel and meeting 10,608 10,779 21,387
Insurance - 31,560 31,560
Park programming 88,978 8,887 97,865

Total expenses S 1,045,363 $ 1,025,759 303,805 $ 2,752,574

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-6-



For the year ended Deces

32

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Statement of Functional Expenses

Supporting
Program Services Services
Midtown Parking Programs Management
Park - Art Garage Subtotal and General Total Expenses
Salaries and benefits S 114,152 $ 556,956 S 110,583 S 667,539
Services and professional fees 199,355 561,702 109,987 671,689
Maintenance expenses 16,594 1,170,613 14,058 1,184,671
Office and occupancy - 17,936 27,000 44,936
Travel and meeting 5,688 45,087 1,232 46,319
Insurance - - 15,182 15,182
Park programming - 74,526 8,678 83,204
Total expenses S 335,789 §$ 2,426,820 S 286,720 S 2,713,540

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-7-



33

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation

dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Statements of Cash Flows

2024 2023

Depreciation expe
Change in operati

S 36,938 S (249,805)

Net cash used in oper,

Investing activi
Purchase of property and equip

Net cash used in investing activi

Net change in cash and cash e

Cash and cash equivalents, beginnin

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

1,563 -
(61,655) 51,639
(112,441) 61,265
(135,595) (136,901)
(23,450) -
(23,450) -
(159,045) (136,901)
872,893

735,992

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-8-



34

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: DESCRIPTION OF THE ORGANIZATION

Midtown ment and Development Corporation (MIDCorp), is a Texas not-for-profit organization
30, 2013. In October 2016, MIDCorp filed with the State of Texas to assume the
pnservancy (the Conservancy). MIDCorp was formed to aid and assist Midtown
(the Authority) and Midtown Management District (the District) with the
ncouragement and maintenance of employment, commerce, transportation,
n, the arts, entertainment, economic development, safety and the public
In addition, the Conservancy maintains and operates several Authority

Park, Midtown Park Parking Garage and Bagby Park. The
ents to property owned by the Authority and the District
ment discussed in Note 5.

Park Series - progr, ansibiliti S ed over parks owned by the Authority under the
management and z > i din Note 5.

Midtown Parking Garage - con
Parking Garage under the parki

operate and maintain Midtown Park
din Note 6.

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAN
Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been
accordance with accounting principles generally acce
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) p

Use of Estimates

The preparation of U.S. GAAP financial statements requires management to make estimat
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and changes the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and t
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could dif
estimates. Estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near re related
to allocation of functional expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90
days or less.



35

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

are not recognized in the financial statements until the conditions are
itly waived by the donor. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be
are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are
ore than one year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present

e dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
iders contributions receivable to be fully collectible as of

p excess of $5,000 and all expenditures for maintenance,
rially prolong the useful lives of assets are capitalized. Repairs and
d. Property and equi carried at cost or, if donated, at the
donation. De puted using the straight-line method
assets.

All acquisitions of property and
renewals, and betterments that
maintenance are expensed as ing
approximate fair value at the da
over the estimated useful lives o

Net Assets

The Conservancy reports information regarding its
classes of net assets that are based upon the existence
by its donors: net assets without donor restrictions an

according to two
e that are placed

position an

specified in its corporate documents and its application
from contractual agreements with creditors and others that are entered into in the course o
operations.

Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are subject to donor-imposed restricti
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that are restricted by a donor for use fo
purpose or in a particular future period. Other restrictions may be perpetual in nature; as those
that are restricted by a donor that the resources be maintained in perpetuity.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the ma specified by the
donor or by the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is reported in the financial statements
by reclassifying the net assets from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions.

-10-



36

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue R

7

mance obligatio der the terms of the contracts with the customers are satisfied, that is, when
k is rented occurs; or over a period of time (monthly) as the parking garage
o Note 6. There were no contract assets, receivables, or contract liabilities

023 and January 1, 2023.

ho possess those skills, and would
salaries and related benefits, office
he Conservancy records the related
revenue and expense in the sta al costs incurred by the related party

on its behalf.
Functional Allocation of Expenses

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to progra
salaries and benefits, services and professional fees
among the programs and supporting services benefitg

Income Taxes

The Conservancy is a not-for-profit organization that is taxes under S
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is classified as a public charity under Section 509(a)(2).

The Conservancy utilizes the accounting requirements associated with uncertainty in income t
the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions initially
recognized in the financial statements when it is more-likely-than-not the positions wi
upon examination by the tax authorities. It also provides guidance for derecogniti
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. As of ber 31, 2024
and 2023, the Conservancy has no uncertain tax provisions that qualify for recog or disclosure in
the financial statements.

Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued, [DATE] and determined there were no events that occurred that required

disclosure. No subsequent events occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these
financial statements.

-11 -



37

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2024 2023

S 908,803 S 984,306

(21,887) -

886,916 984,306

Restricted by donor with purpose restrictions (550,688)

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for genep

expenditures within one year 433,618

Note 4: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:
Estimated Useful

December 31, Lives (in years)

Park equipment 10 S

Total depreciable property and equipment 23,450 -
Accumulated depreciation (1,563) -
Total property and equipment, net S 21,887 $ -

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2024 amounted to $1,563. There was no
depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2023.

-12 -



38

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5: AGREEMENTS WITH MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND MIDTOWN MANAGEMENT
DISTRICT

p and the Authority and the District entered into a Management and Maintenance
2015, MIDCorp entered into an Operating Agreement with the Authority. The
rofit local government corporation created and organized under the provisions
portation Code, and authorized and approved by the City of Houston, Texas
a special purpose district created under Chapter 3809, Texas Special District

Maintenance Agreement, the Conservancy will provide
g o certain public improvements (the Improvements) that
are beyond the mainte ibili ity and are within the boundaries of the Service Area,
as defined in the ag . g i ctive for ten years from July 1, 2015 and automatically

and contribute funds annually to fund the maintenance
obligations as defined in the 3 ement. Beginning February 1, 2016, the District shall make a
contribution totaling $200,000, 2 District’s contribution shall be equal to
the prior year’s contribution pl set and approval. The Authority will
provide an annual contributio ct contribution beginning February 1,
2016. The Authority’s annua City Council. Contributions from the
District will be used to maintain, the Legacy Improvements as defined in
the agreement. The agreement ma lude addition provements acquired,
constructed, and installed by or on behalf of the Au istrict shall share the
maintenance cost on a 50%-50% basis, provided the Di¢
for such additional improvements. The Agreement was
However, as of the date of this report, no amendmentg

In addition, the Authority will also assist the Consé
Fund, to which the Authority will budget and contribut
Renewal and Replacement Fund reaches five percent of
Area. The value of the improvements is subject to reevaluation every five years.

Operating Agreement

Under the terms of the Operating Agreement, the Conservancy will operate, manage,
preserve the Park Facilities (including Bagby Park, Midtown Park and Midtown Park Parki
defined in the agreement. Revenue from these facilities is remitted to, or retaine
support its operations. The agreement is effective for 40 years and automatic ews for two
consecutive 20 year periods. Under the terms of the Operating Agreement, the
Annual Management Fee totaling $250,000 per year for the first two years, then each year thereafter an
amount not to exceed $500,000 per year based on the Conservancy’s Annual Operating Plan. Certain
credits are applied towards the Annual Maintenance Fee based on excess facilities revenues as defined
by the terms of the agreement. The Authority’s annual budget is subject to approval by City Council.

-13-



39

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5: AGREEMENTS WITH MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND MIDTOWN MANAGEMENT

ine train on Main Street between the Wheeler Transit
t's operational area. The District’s responsibilities are

Note 6: PARKING MANAGEMEN

Under the terms of the Park
Management, LLC (WINPARK)
as defined in the agreement.

ctive December 1, 2016, WINPARK
idtown Park Parking Garage (Garage),
ears and can be extended for 1 year
pay a monthly management fee totaling
$2,000 through December 31 20 2021. The amount of

included in revenues on the statements of activitie
year ended December 31, 2023.

Note 7: NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

December 31, 2024

Purpose restricted

Renewal and replacement S 27, 90,470
Maintenance of Legacy Improvements 242,526 57,777
Maintenance of New Improvements 416,585 402,441
Total net assets with donor restrictions S 687,052 S 550,688

-14 -



40

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7: NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS (Continued)

’ 2024 2023

S - S 477,539
137,530 138,558
394,922 454,045
391,382 197,058

S 923,834 S 1,267,200

contributions from local government

corporations and private corp accounted for 98% and 100% of
contribution revenue for each ¢ ' 024 and 2023, respectively. For the
years ended December 31, 20 3 c buted an additional $1,638,000 and

Cash and cash equivalents are maipta ~ i The
Conservancy maintains cash deposits with a finan 1 iti 2024 and 2023 in

provides office space, certain equipment and certain staff Services to the Conservancy. Effectiv
2019, the Conservancy entered into a verbal agreement with the Authority in which all services und
administrative contract for the operations of the Conservancy’s programs as well as the admini

no donor-
used by the

support related donations based on the actual costs incurred by the Authority. Ther,
imposed restrictions associated with donated services and all donated service
Conservancy.

-15-



41

Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation
dba Midtown Parks Conservancy
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The compg the Authority’s donations to the Conservancy consists of the following:

’ 2024 2023

$ 183,225 ¢ 173,392
246,939 241,083
30,410 28,330
121,274 114,152

Park Series
Park - Art

107,055 110,582

Total contributed S 688,903 $ 667,539

For the years e 23, the Authority contributed approximately $351,000
and $348,000, respectively, to fu he servancy’s maintenance obligations pursuant to the terms of
the management and maintena greement (see Note 5). ecember 31, 2024 and 2023, there was
approximately $199,000 and $ from the Authority which included
expenses paid by the Conserva

ontributed approximately $710,000 and
$565,000, respectively, to fund the aj obligations pursuant to the terms of the

the Conservancy’s board serves as the Executive Dire and the Di

-16 -



2\ |CRIgdi

November 17,2025

ou have reviewed the return for completeness and
[E to our office. We will transmit the return

ired. Return Form 8879-TE to us by November 17,
2025.

We prepared the re
return by tax authorities, requests
preserve all records which you m
examinations.

ished us without verification. Upon examination of the
y be made for underlying data. We therefore recommend that you
e called upon to produce_ia nection with such possible

We sincerely appreciate the opy
concerning the tax return.

We have provided you tax advice in i i i . deral tax return and
associated tax planning services we have furnished. - itten to be used by
any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties that > by the Internal
Revenue Service, and it cannot be used by any taxpaye

CRI Advisors, LLC

4, CRladv.com




TAX RETURN FILING INSTRUCTIONS
FORM 990

FOR THE YEAR ENDING
December 31, 2024

Mail Tax Return and Check (if 2

Not applicable

Return Must be Mailed On or B

Not applicable

Special Instructions:

This return has qualified for electronic
completeness and accuracy, please si
using our secure file transfer websit
return electronically to the IRS and no
us by November 17, 2025


https://criadv.hubsync.com/

44

IRS E-file Signature Authorization OMB No. 1545-0047

forn 3879-TE for a Tax Exempt Entity
For calendar year 2024, or fiscal year beginning , 2024, and ending , 20
Department of the Treasury Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 2 024
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879TE for the latest information.
Name of filer EIN or SSN
MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741
Name and title of officer or person subjecttotax ~MATT THIBODEAUX
SECRETARY/TREASURER

and Return Information

-). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more

b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 2,100,6009.

b Totalrevenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line Q) . 2b
Form 1120-POL, line 22) 3b
investment income (Form 990-PF, Part V, line5) 4b
orm 8868, liNe 8C) 5b
90-T check here O-T, Part lIl, line 4) 6b
Form 4720 check here L art I, line 1) 7b
8a Form 5227 check here f tax year (Form 5227, ltemD) 8b
9a Form 5330 check here art 1, line 19) 9b
10a__Form 8038-CP check A ed ent requested (Form 8038-CP, Part lll, line 22) 10b
[Partll [ Declaration Officer or Person Subject to Tax
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that I am ;

and that | have examined a copy of the

ledge and belief, they are true, correct, and

he electronic return. | consent to allow my

n to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an

y delay in processing the return or refund, and (c) the date
o initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit)

t of the federal taxes owed on this return, and the

the U.S. Treasury Fipancial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no

cial institutions in in the processing of the electronic
solve issues rela ayment. | have selected a

icable, the cons, ic funds withdrawal.

of entity)

2024 electronic return and accompanying schedulg
complete. | further declare that the amount in Pal
intermediate service provider, transmitter, or elect

of any refund. If applicable, | authorize the U.S. Tree
entry to the financial institution account indicated in
financial institution to debit the entry to this account.

payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer ingt
personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the electronic return al

PIN: check one box only

[X] 1 authorize CRI ADVISORS, LLC

[ 12345 |

Enter five numbers, but
ot enter all zeros

ERO firm name

as my signature on the tax year 2024 electronically filed return. If | have i ithi i ing filed
with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State pr:
on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

|:| As an officer or person subject to tax with respect to the entity, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the tax year 2024 elec

IRS Fed/State program, | will enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.
Signature of officer or person subject to tax

[Partlll | Certification and Authentication

ERO’s EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification

number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. [ 7619387611
Do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2024 electronically filed return indicated above. | confirm that | am
submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized IRS e-fijle Providers for
Business Returns.

ERO's signature CRI ADVISORS, LLC Date 11/17/25

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8879-TE (2024)

LHA 402521 12-26-24

07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



- 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

EXTENDED TO NOVEMBER 17, 2025

Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

45

OMB No. 15450047

2024

Open to Public

Inspection

A For the 2024 calendar year, or tax year beginning and ending
B gggﬁg ailf)le: C Name of organization D Employer identification number
hahee IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP
Shange MIDTOWN PARK CONSERVANCY 47-3549741
LgittliI?L or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
Final | TREET, SUITE 355 (713) 526-7577
e ince, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts $ 2 r 100 ) 609.
7002 H(a) Is this a group return

Name and address of p|

al officer: MATT THIBODEAUX for subordinates?

|:|Yes No

SAME AS C AB H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:|Yes l:l No
2xempt status: 501(c)(3) (insert no.) |:| 4947(a)(1) or |:| 527 If "No," attach a list. See instructions
> N/A H(c) Group exemption number
nization: Corp iation [ | Other | L Year of formation: 201 3] m State of legal domicile: TX

activities: SEE SCHEDULE O

Check this box

[Part 1l | Signature Block

8
g
£l 2
% 3 Number of voting memiers of'the goverqingbody (Part VI, ineta) 3 4
g 4 Number of indepeng Part VI, lineib) 4 4
@ 5 Total number of indi artV,line2a) 5 0
:*; 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if negessary) 6 0
B| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from PatMll, column (C), line 12 . 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income fi orm 990-T, Part |, line 11 . 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, ine @R\ @SR AR 1,565,777. 1,808,464.
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 29 ... By 0. 0.
2| 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), line d7d) N 12,037. 10,775.
©1 11 Other revenue (Part VII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and el A ,382. 281,370.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A)line12) ......... 2 ’ 100 ) 609.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 0.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line4) . A . 0
@ 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column ( 0
2| 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) &0 0
é’. b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25)
Wl 47 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) = M0
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) S 2, 2
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 ... .. ... -917 ) 344.
5§ Beginning of Current Year
‘a‘g 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 984,306.
;%’ 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 333,540.
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 650,766, 687,704.

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the b
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any kno

nowledge and belief, it is

Sign Signature of officer Date
Here MATT THIBODEAUX, SECRETARY/TREASURER

Type or print name and title

Preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Sheck (]| PTIN
Paid KRISTEN SIMPSON KRISTEN SIMPSON 11/17/25] serempoyed [P01268482
Preparer |Firm'sname @ CRI ADVISORS, LLC FirmsEIN 99-4625061
Use Only | Firm's address TWO RIVERWAY, 15TH FLOOR

HOUSTON, TX 77056

Phoneno.713-621-8090

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions ...

Yes |:| No

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 432001 12-10-24

Form 990 (2024)



46

Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-354974 f Page 2
Part lll [ Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Il ..

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

ATD AND ASSIST THE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
HOUSTON, TEXAS WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROJECT PLAN FOR THE
REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS, AND THE MIDTOWN
MANAGEMENT BISTRICT, A SPECIAL DISTRICT CREATED UNDER CHAPTER 3809,

ake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

2 Did the organizatig

Prior FOrm OO0 O O |:|Yes No
If "Yes," des es on Schedule O.
3 Didtheg ng, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? ... .. |:|Yes No

hedule O.

rvice accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.

ations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and

ce reported

7 8 6 6 b . including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

N DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
! [ NTATION OF THE PROJECT PLAN FOR THE
REINV ONE N& Y OF HOUSTON, TEXAS, AND THE MIDTOWN
MANAGEMENT DISTRIG Z STRICT CREATED UNDER CHAPTER 3809,
TEXAS SPECIAL D 3TC ODE, WITH THE PROMOTION,
DEVELOPMENT, ITENANCE OF EMPLOYMENT, COMMERCE,
TRANSPORTATIG OUSIN RECREATION, THE ARTS, ENTERTAINMENT,
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, S HE PUBLIC WELFARE IN THE MIDTOWN AREA
OF THE CITY OF HOUSTON,

4b  (Code: ) (Expenses $ ) (Revenue $ )

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses 1,866,921.

Form 990 (2024)

432002 12-10-24

2
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



47
Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 Page 3

[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 s the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
IF"Y8S," COMPIBLE SCREAUIB A ... e 1 X
2 s the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? /f "Yes dleomplete Schedule C, Part | ... 3 X
4 ions. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
omplete SChedule C, Part Il .....................c..oo oo 4 X
5 4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
oc. 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part lll ......................ccccocoiiooeiieeee . 5 X
6 or advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
estment of amounts in such funds or accounts? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
onservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
7 X
.......... 8 X
9 X
..................................................................................... 10 X
If the organization’s an 2 v s," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X,
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land
Part VI ... B D 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for in
assets reported in Part X, line 167 |f "Yes," gomplete Schedule D, RaftVll S . A o e 11b X
c Did the organization report an amount for i
....... 11c X
d
..... 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 258 f%¥es, " complete Sche@lule DYPamy ................. 11e X
f
1f | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial sta "Yes,"
Schedule D, Parts Xland Xl .........................ccc.ccviiiiiiiii SO A NG N
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited final
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Scliedule’D, Parts X/ and XWis @ptional .............°
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i))? If "Yes," complete Schedule E
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? |f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | @Nd IV ...............coc oo
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV .................cccoioioieeeeee . A
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistal
or for foreign individuals? Jf "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts llland IV ..o ... 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions ... 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? Jf "Yes," complete SChedule G, Part Il ................c.o e 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? /f "Yes,"
complete SCREAUIE G, Part Il ...................coo e 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? jf "Yes," complete Schedule H .........................cccoiiieoeeeee . 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il _............cc...ioiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiies 21 X
432003 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)

07531125 794202 94-05092.000

3

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



48
Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741  page4
| Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (ontinueq)

Yes | No
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? [f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ...................ocoo oo 22 X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE J ..o ..o 23 X
24a Did the organizatig 3 tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
sued after December 31, 20027 f "Yes, " answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
24a X
24b
24c
24d
25a X
25b X
26 X
entity (including an employee thereof) or familyfmember of any of these persons? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il ......... 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business trz
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, ¢
a A current or former officer, director, trustee,
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28a X
b A family member of any individual descrlbed I 28b X
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV .................ccccocieeieeeeeeee i A e AN 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contrlbutlon _________ 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or ot
contributions? jf "Yes," complete Schedule M ..................ccoocooovoeeee o 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operatio 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than
Schedule N, Part Il ... ... ... . N AT N
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes, " Complete Schedule R, Part!] . 5
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I, Ill, or IV, and
Part VN T

35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?
b If "Yes" to line 353, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity

within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, lin€ 2 ..............c..ocooivoivooeie .
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related org

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 ... AT 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organizatio
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? |f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI Sar.................... 37 X

38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?

Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... il 38 | X
Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a 56
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) WinNINgs 10 Prze WINNEIS ? 1c | X
432004 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)

07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

49
47-3549741  page 5

[Part V| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (ontinued)

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,

filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a

Yes

No

b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?

3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?

2b

3a

3b

4a

5a

Sb

5¢c

6a

6b

7a

7b

7c

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining da i . i d maintained by the
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor a
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions undel
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor ad
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, line 12 g9
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use o

ation file Form 8899 as required?
the organization file a Form 1098-C?

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders N

b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other s
amounts due or received from them.) N

7e

7f

79

N/

7h

N/

>

9a

9b

12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ... IN/A

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans .. [ 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves on hand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? SO 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? Jf "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49532 N/A | 17
If "Yes," complete Form 6069.
432005 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)

5
07531125 794202 94-05092.000

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



50

Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 Page 6
Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure. o each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ...
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear 1a 4
If there are material diffes@nces in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broa to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.
b Enter the nump bers included on line 1a, above, who are independent . ... . .. 1b 4
2 Did any offig key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 2 X
3 pver management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
ployees to a management company or other person? 3 X
nt changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 6 X
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 7a X
________________________________________________________________________________ 7b X
_____________________________________ ga | X
8b | X
___________________________________________________ 9 X
Section B. Policies (7pjs section B requests i
Yes | No
_______________________________________________________________ 10a X
_______________________________________ 10b
11a| X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organizatio
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? Jf "No," go . O 12a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annuall ; ieriseto conflicts?m,. 120 | X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce comp 2 Wi i Yes," descri
on Schedule O how this was done ....................cccooeeeieeeieeeeeeeee ey o M S 12c | X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? & A SO ST 13 | X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? & S0 .. 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons inclu
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the delibs
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official
b Other officers or key employees of the organization
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year?
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participati
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s
exempt status with respect to such arrangements? ... A 16b
Section C. Disclosure

17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed NONE
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website |:| Another’s website Upon request |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records
THE ORGANIZATION - (713) 526-7577
410 PIERCE STREET, SUITE 355, HOUSTON, TX 77002

432006 12-10-24

Form 990 (2024)
6
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



51
Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 Page 7
Part VII| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® | ist all of the organj s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."
® | ist the organizat rent highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received repol € on (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the i related organizations.
officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
ion and any related organizations.
ectors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
on from the organization and any related organizations.
list the persons above.

ion nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(€) (D) (E) (F)
o ot Cr']:; ng'()?gthan one Reportable Reportable Estimated
rs p , unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week r and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any 3 the organizations compensation
hours for 4;5 B organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
elated 2 . g (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
izations| = I 1099-NEC) and related
= 5| 2 éé 5 organizations
5|8 25| 5
(1) WILLIAM R, FRANKS . 2
ACTING BOARD CHAIR X X 0. 0. 0.
(2) MATT THIBODEAUX .27
SECRETARY/TREASURER X 0. 0. 0.
(3) ABE S. GOREN .27
BOARD MEMBER 0. 0. 0.
(4) WILLIE T, COLEMAN
BOARD MEMBER X 0. 0.
432007 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)

7
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



52

Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741  Page8
| Part Vi | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B) () (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average (do not Cr']:; ng'::gthan one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | pox, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any = the organizations compensation
hours for | = B organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related g |2 2 (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations g % g g 1099-NEC) and related
below 21E|.|2l28 = organizations

1b Subtotal ... . . 0. 0.
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VI, . 0. 0.
d Total (addlines tband1c) ... SO0 N 0. 0.

2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed ab

compensation from the organization 0
Yes | No

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employg
line 1a? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual —................. S ooovooeo M oS

4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensa
and related organizations greater than $150,000? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J fOFSUCH individualee M. ...

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unr es

rendered to the organization? jf "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchperson .. ..o

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensatj
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B)
Name and business address NONE Description of services

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization 0

Form 990 (2024)
432008 12-10-24

8
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



53

Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741  Page9
Part VIIl | Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl ... |:|
(A) (B) (9] (D)
Total revenue Related or exempt Unrelated Revenue excluded

function revenue |business revenue fr(_)m tax under
sections 512 - 514

1a
1b
1c
1d
1e

1| 1,808,464.

19($
otal. Add lines 1a-1f . e o 1,808,464.

amounts not included 2

cash contributions included in ling

ontributions, Gifts, Grants

)
0
<
o2
n
£ ¢
E d
o
2
a
3
other similar amou 10,775.
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt
5 Royalties ... .o
(i) Personal
6 a Grossrents 6al281,
b Less: rental expenses . [6b
¢ Rental income or (loss) 6cl281,
d Netrentalincome or (I0SS) ....................... . Sceeeser e 281 ’ 370.
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory | 7a
b Less: cost or other basis
e and salesexpenses .. |7b
§ ¢ Gainor(loss) ... 7c
é d Netgain or (I0SS) ...
E 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
o including $ of
contributions reported on line 1¢). See
PartIV,line18 . |8a
b Less: direct expenses 8b
c Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ...
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line19 9a
b Less: direct expenses 9b
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ...
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances . 103
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b|
c_Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ...
Business Code
(2]
§ 11 a
§ b
© c
Q
é d Allotherrevenue
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ... .. 2,100,6009. 0. 0.|] 292,145.
432009 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)

9
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



Form 990 (2024)

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

54

47-3549741 page 10

[ Part IX | Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ...
) ; (A) (B) (C) (D)
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total expenses Program service Management and Fundraising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses

1

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20
21
22
23
24

Q - 0 o 60 T o

Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governmeats. See Part IV, line 21
Grants and other g e to domestic

Lobbying
Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, i
Investment managementfees N
Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.)
Advertising and promotion
Office expenses

Information technology
Royalties
Occupancy
Travel

Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials .
Conferences, conventions, and meetings

Interest

Payments to affiliates
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization
Insurance

Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)

5,643.

10,769.

a LEGACY IMPROVEMENT PROJ 836,530. 836,530.
b PARK SERIES 301,449. 301,449.
¢ PARK PROGRAMMING 97,865. 88,978. 8,887.
d MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL 21,952. 21,952.
e All other expenses 12,153. 12,119. 34.
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 2,063,671. 1,866,921. 196,750. 0.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here |:| if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)
432010 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)

07531125 794202 94-05092.000

10

2024.05000 MIDTOWN

IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



Form 990 (2024)

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

55
47-3549741 page 11

[Part X | Balance Sheet

432011 12-10-24

07531125 794202 94-05092.000

11

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .. |:|
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
735,993.] 1 504,673.
2 72,274.
3
247,743.] a4 308,097.
___________________________ 5
______ 6
__________________________________________ 7
_______________________________________ 8
___________________________________________ 9 174.
0.]10c 21,887.
__________________ 11
__________________ 12
___________________________ 13
14
15  Other assets. See IV, line 11 B 570.] 15 1,698.
16__ Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mUstequal ine33) ... ... ... 984,306.] 16 908,803.
17 327,571.] 17 217,230.
18 Grantspayable R 18
19 Deferredrevenue R 19
20 Tax-exemptbond liabilities BN 20
21 21
» | 22 Loans and other payables to any current o icer,
é trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contribu
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons G
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties A0
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 3 ; 869.
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Compl
of Schedule D
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 ... ...
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
§ 27 Net assets without donor restrictions 100 ’ 078.| 27
S 28 Net assets with donor restrictions 550 ’ 688.
2 Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here |:|
'-E and complete lines 29 through 33.
3 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds
§ 30 Paid-.in or capi.tal surplus, or land, building, or (.equipment fund
< | 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds
g 32 Total net assets or fund balances . 650,7 687,704.
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 984 P 306.] 33 908 P 803.
Form 990 (2024)

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



56

Form 990 (2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 page12
Part XI | Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI . ... |:|
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 2,100,6009.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2,063,671.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 fromlinet 36,938.
4 650,766.
5
6
7
8
9 0.
10
10 687,704.
_________________________________________________________________________________ L]
Yes | No
Accrual |:| Other
year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
by an independent accountant? ... 2a X

b Were the organization’s € endent accountant? 2b | X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whethg
consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis |:| Consolidate, ie d arate basis

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organizati dility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial stateniéntsjand selectiomlofianiindependent geeountant? . 2¢| X
If the organization changed either its oversight tax year, explain on Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organizatio
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? SO A L A 3a X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the' d audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to und 5 i y AR Y 3b
Form 990 (2024)

432012 12-10-24

12
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



57

. . . OMB No. 1545-0047
;Z:igs LEA Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2024
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741

| Part | | Reason forPublic Charity Status. (all organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a oundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 |:| A church urches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
|:| A schg i i 170(b)(1)(A)ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
pital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
pperated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’'s name,

penefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
ete Part Il.)

6

7 part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
8

9 O(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land ctions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:
An organization t ally receives (1
activities related to it§'exempt functions, ceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable i e (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part |
11 |:| An organization organized and operateg
12 |:| An organization organized and operate

=

10

tion 509(a)(4).
e functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or

more publicly supported organizations i i C ; 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the anizati plete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.
a |:| Type l. A supporting organization operate@ s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint o ees of the supporting

organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.
b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in conng
control or management of the supporting organization vested in t
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C
c |:| Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization op
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete
d |:| Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization oper
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satis distribution requireme d an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.
e |:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type II, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported Organizations
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (ii) EIN (iiii) Type of organization | ()Isthe organizationlisted | (v) Amount of mon: (vi) Amount of other
o (described on lines 1-10 in your governing document? . . R
organization ¢ . support (see instr support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) Yes No
Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 432021 01-14-25 Schedule A (Form 990) 2024



58
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 page2
Partll | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ill. If the organization

fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part IIl.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and

membership fees recej

supported
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
column (f)

6 Public support. Subtract i

Section B. Total Suppo
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)
7 Amounts from line 4

8 Gross income from interest,

(c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total

dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources

9 Net income from unrelated business

activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explainin Part VI.)
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . N ... & b
13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourt| tax year as

organization, check this box and stop here ... SO S A
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2024 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) 14

15 Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part Il, line14 15
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2024. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check thi
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L A

b 33 1/3% support test - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 163, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or m
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2024. [f the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part ow the organization

meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization |:|

as

b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

432022 01-14-25

14
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



59
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 page3
Part lll [ Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to

qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)
Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees recej

1483794.] 2092576.| 1551921.| 2233316.| 1808464.| 9170071.

1551921.]) 2233316.| 1808464.] 9170071.

-
o
-
-
>
o
[o%
=}
[0
(2]}
-
—
oy
=
o
C
Q
>
.

6

3 received from disqualifi 0.
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year 0 .
cAddlines7aand7b . . . 0.
9170071.

8 Public support. (Subtractline 7c from line 6.)
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)
9 Amounts fromline6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

c Addlines 10aand10b
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explain in Part VI.) oo
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.) 1484764.| 2093620.| 1556620.| 2245353.( 1819

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c

(e) 2024 (f) Total
1808464.| 9170071.

29,525.

check this box and StOP NeIre ... AN e |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2024 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) .68 %
16 Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part lll, line 15 ... ... .79 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2024 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) .. . ... .. 17 .32 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 18 .21 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2024. [f the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... .

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . |:|
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  ............................. |:|

432023 01-14-25 Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

15
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



60

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-35497 41 Page 4

Part IV| Supporting Organizations

(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12¢, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1 Are all of the organizatie

's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing

under sg " explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
509(a)(1) or (2).

3a organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
supported grganization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
der sectiong )? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

jons was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

"Yes," and if you checked box, d 4c below.
hether to make grants to the foreign

despite being controlled ofSupervised by or in

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supp,

under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)?

to ensure that all support to the foreign supp tion 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or rel tax year? [f "Yes,"

the names and EIN

numbers of the supported organizations added, sU i ns for each such action;

(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authori

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).
b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organizatj
designated in the organization’s organizing document?
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are p
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporti
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizatio
Part VI.

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? |f "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more

¢ If "Yes," provide det:

disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations describ:
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section

4943(f) (regarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? /f "Yes," answer line 10b below.

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes [ No

3a

3b

3c

4a

ab

4c

5a

5b
5c

9a

9b

9c

10a

10b

432024 01-14-25

16

07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024



61
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 pages
[Part IV | Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes [ No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
c A 35% controlled entity @fya person described on line 11a or 11b above? /f "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,

11c

Yes [ No

the tax year? |f "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
trolled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
strictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

Yes [ No

ax year also a majority of the directors
If "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization ame persons that controlled or managed

the supported organization(s).
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Orga

Yes [ No

year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most > i on, and (iii) copies of the
not previously provided?

significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directi
income or assets at all times during the tax year? f "Yes," describe in

supported organizations played in this regard.
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizati
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integ
a |:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.

b |:| The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c |:| The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental

entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

art Test during the ye see instructions).

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement,
one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? |f "Yes," explain in

Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If "Yes" or "No," provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in _Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b
432025 01-14-25 17 Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



62

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-35497 41 Page 6

| PartV | Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part VI). See instructions.

All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

G [h (DN |=

1
2
3
4
5
6

)]

~

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1a

1b

1c

Total (add lines 1a, 1b,

1d

Discount claimed for bloékage or other factor:
(explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-e; -use assets

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0. line 3 (for greatere
see instructions).

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract

6 Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

Section C - Distributable Amount

Current Year

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)
2 Enter0.85 of line 1.
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)
4  Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.
5 Income tax imposed in prior year
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).
7 |:| Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization

instructions).

432026 01-14-25

18
07531125 794202 94-05092.000

(Form 990) 202

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

63

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 Page 7

| PartV | Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4  Amounts paid to acquike exempt-use assets 4
5 5
6 6
7 7
8 prganizations to which the organization is responsive
8
9
10
0] (ii) (iii)
Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2024 Amount for 2024

024 (reason-
instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover,

From 2019

From 2020

From 2021

From 2022

From 2023

Total of lines 3a through 3e
Applied to under distributions of prior years

STKre|™jo a0 ||

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Carryover from 2019 not applied (see instruct!

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from liné

4  Distributions for 2024 from Section D,
line 7: $

a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b _Applied to 2024 distributable amount

c_Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2024, if

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2024. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2025. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2020

Excess from 2021

Excess from 2022

Excess from 2023

[ o T (o2 [ o i |

Excess from 2024

432027 01-14-25

19
07531125 794202 94-05092.000

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



64
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 pages

Part VI Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part lll, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

432028 01-14-25 Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
20
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



65

Schedule B Schedule of Contributors

(Form 990) OMB No. 1545-0047

(Rev. December 2024) Attach to Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.

ﬂf:rig:“:;‘\t e"r:utses ::313:'3’ Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

Name of the organization Employer identification number
MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741

Organization type (check orie):

Filers of:

Form 990 or 9¢ 5 3 ) (enter number) organization

st treated as a private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the Genera
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organizatig

General Rule

For an organization filing Form 990, 990 - , contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Compléete Pa L ermining a contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 99Q the regulations under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form i ived from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) { unt on (i) Form VI, line 1h;
or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and Il.

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 9
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusi
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), I, and Ill.

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one conti
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than
is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, chati
purpose. Don’t complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it re
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year

Caution: An organization that isn’t covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it must
answer "No" on Part 1V, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to certify
that it doesn’t meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

LHA 423451 01-09-25



66

Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 2
Name of organization Employer identification number
MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741

Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(a) (b) (c) (d)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

ELOPMENT AUTHORITY Person

Payroll ]
$ 1,299,302, Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

1

(c) (d)

Total contributions Type of contribution
Person
Payroll ]
$ 709,693. Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(c) (d)

Total contributions Type of contribution

No. Name, addres

Person |:|
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ ]

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(d)

Type of contribution

(a) (b)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(a) (b) (c)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)

No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person |:|
Payroll |:|
$ Noncash [ ]

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

423452 01-09-25 Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

22
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



67

Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) Page 3
Name of organization Employer identification number
MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741

Partll Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a) ©

No.
. (b) . FMV (or estimate)
from cription of noncash property given (See instructions.)

Part |

(d)

Date received

$
(c)
. FMV (or estimate) Dat (@ ved
given (See instructions.) ate receive
$
(a)
(c)
No.
L. (b FMV (or estimate) (@ .
from Description of nonc . ) Date received
(See instructions.)
Part |
(a)
No. (b) (d)
from Description of noncash property given Date received
Part |
(a)
(c)
No.
. (b) . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given . ) eceived
(See instructions.)
Part|
$
(a)
(c)
No.
. (b) . FMV (or estimate) (d) .
from Description of noncash property given . ) Date received
(See instructions.)
Part |
$
423453 01-09-25 Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

23
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

68

Page 4

Name of organization

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

Employer identification number

47-3549741

Part i

Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year

from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations

completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this info. once.) $

Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is needed.

(a) No.
Ifal’OTI ose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee’s

Relationship of transferor to transferee

D

(b) Purpose @ se of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gi
Transferee’s name, add Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
from (b) Purpose of gift ion of how gift is held
Part |
(e) Transfer,
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift
Part |
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
423454 01-09-25 Schedule B (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
24

07531125 794202 94-05092.000

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



69

SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements

(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, OMB No. 15450047
(Rev. December 2024) Part IV, line 6, 7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. _
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open tq Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP

Employer identification number

47-3549741

Part | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

a H ON =

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number a

to the organization’s exclusive legal control?

nd donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds

|:| Yes |:| No

................ |:| Yes |:| No

o 0 T 9o

easements

|:| Preservation of lan
|:| Protection of natural hab
|:| Preservation of opel
Complete lines 2a thro

d for pub ) education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area
|:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

servation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements 8 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . 2b

Number of conservation easements on a ce| Vo 2c

Number of conservation easements include: not

on a historic structure listed in the National L Y A 2d

Number of conservation easements modified € exti S the organization during the tax

year
Number of states where property subject to conservation easement IS
Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monito
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?
Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of via

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requi
and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?

organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

In Part XllII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

........ |:| Yes |:| No

ents during the year

Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Ass

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a [f the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance s
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtheranc:

a
b

service, provide in Part Xlll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.
If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance

art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,

provide the following amounts relating to these items.
(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide

the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1

Assets included in FOrm 990, Part X i i iiiii e iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiie..s

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

LHA

07531125 794202 94-05092.000

432051 01-02-25

25

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



07531125 794202 94-05092.000

70
Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12:2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 page?2
[Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (ontinued)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).

a |:| Public exhibition d |:| Loan or exchange program

b |:| Scholarly research e |:| Other

c |:| Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a descriptio
5 During the year di

the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIII.

janization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets

.................................... |:| Yes |:| No

Amount
.............................. 1ic
1d
................... e
....................................................................................................... 1f
Did the organization include an ang orm 990, Part X, , for escrow or custodial account liability? |:| Yes |:| No
b _If "Yes," explain the arrangeme ation has been provided in Part XIIl ... |:|

[PartV | Endowment Fug ed "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

(b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance
Contributions

Net investment earnings, gains, and losses

Grants or scholarships ...

Other expenditures for facilities

and programs ..

Administrative expenses
g End of year balance

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (lin€

® Q O T

--

a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment %
b Permanent endowment %
¢ Term endowment %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization
organization by:
(i) Unrelated organizations?
(ii) Related organizations?
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?

Describe in Part XllI the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
Part VI | Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated
basis (investment) basis (other)
fa Land .
b Buildings
¢ Leasehold improvements
d Equipment 23,450. 1,563. 21,887.
e Other ... ...
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990. Part X. line 10¢. COMA (BY oo 21,887.
Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
432052 01-02-25
26

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



07531125 794202 94-05092.000

71

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 page3
Part VII| Investments - Other Securities
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives

(2) Closely held equity interests

(3) Other
A

B)
C

D
(E)

0l. (b) must equal Form 990, Part 12, col. (B))
Investments - Prg Related

answereg orm 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.
Stment Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, co,
Part IX | Other Assets

Complete if the organization answered{Yes" on ’a e Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(b) Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, col. (B))
Part X | Other Liabilities

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.
1. (a) Description of liability

(

Federal income taxes

™

@

=

G

©

~
N

©

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

[©

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, €Ol (B)) ..o

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIIl ...
Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

432053 01-02-25

27

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



07531125 794202 94-05092.000

72

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 page4
Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 2 , 7 89 , 5 12.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VII, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments . 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities 2b 688 P 903.
¢ Recoveries of prior yedsarants 2c
d Other (Describe ind@artoRI) 2d
e Addlines 2ath@UGRZAC D 2 688,903.
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 2,100,609.
________________________ 4a
_________________________________________________________________________ 4b

4c 0.
) 5 2,100,6009.
dited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return

1 2,752,574.

2 S 990, Part IX,
a Donated services and use of facilifiés . N 2a 688 y 903.
b Prior year adjustments 4 S N 2b
c Otherlosses . & 0 NS00 e 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XWE9” . S 0 2d
e Addlines2athrough2d & 2e 688,903.

3 2,063,671.

3 Subtract line 2e from line1  FE
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line
Investment expenses not included on Form ¢
b Other (Describe in Part XIlI.)

[V

¢ Addlines4aand4b O A 4c 0.
Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This musteq ) i . 5 2,063,671.
| Part Xlll| Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines T¢ L i line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,

lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlI, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide
PART X, LINE 2:

THE CONSERVANCY IS A NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGA FROM
INCOME TAXES UNDER SECTION 501(C)(3) OF
CLASSIFIED AS A PUBLIC CHARITY UNDER Sk

THE CONSERVANCY UTILIZES THE ACCOUNTING RE
UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES USING THE PROV
STANDARDS BOARD (FASB) ASC 740, INCOME TAXES. USING THAT GUIDANCE, TA
POSITIONS INITIALLY NEED TO BE RECOGNIZED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN
IT IS MORE-LIKELY-THAN-NOT THE POSITIONS WILL BE SUSTAINED UPON
EXAMINATION BY THE TAX AUTHORITIES. IT ALSO PROVIDES GUIDANCE FO
DERECOGNITION, CLASSIFICATION, INTEREST AND PENALTIES, ACCOUNT
INTERIM PERIODS, DISCLOSURE AND TRANSITION. AS OF DECEMBER 31 4 AND
2023, THE CONSERVANCY HAS NO UNCERTAIN TAX PROVISIONS THAT FY FOR
RECOGNITION OR DISCLOSURE IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

432054 01-02-25 Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
28

2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



73

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 122024 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741 pages
[Part XIlI | Supplemental Information ,ntinued)

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
432055 01-02-25

29
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



74

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OME No. 15450047
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
(Rev. December 2024) Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. o Publi
Department of the Treasur Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. pen to Public

P Y ; ; : : : Inspection
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. P
Name of the organization Employer identification number

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741
FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:
ATID AND ASSIS HE MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
HOUSTON, TEX2 TH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROJECT PLAN FOR THE
REINVESTMED HON UMBER TWO, CITY OF HOUSTON, TEXAS, AND THE MIDTOWN
MANAGEMENA A SPECIAL DISTRICT CREATED UNDER CHAPTER 3809,
TEXAS SE LOCAL LAWS CODE, WITH THE PROMOTION,
DEVELQ . AGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF EMPLOYMENT, COMMERCE,
TRA >, TOURISM, RECREATION, THE ARTS, ENTERTAINMENT,
ECE , SAFETY AND THE PUBLIC WELFARE IN THE MIDTOWN AREA
G H , TEXAS.

INE DI RITPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

TEXAS ; C ICT ] CODE, WITH THE PROMOTION,

DEVELOP OURAG TENANCE OF EMPLOYMENT, COMMERCE,
TRANSPORTATION, HOUSZ REATION, THE ARTS, ENTERTAINMENT,
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMED PUBLIC WELFARE IN THE MIDTOWN AREA
OF THE CITY OF HOQI

FORM 990, PART V&, SECTION[B /¢
A COPY OF THE FORM 990 IS 3M
THE IRS.

B:
D TO THE BOARD BEFORE IT IS FILED WITH

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTIO , LINE 1
COMPANY ANNUALLY GIVES O AN AD ICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL
WHICH INCLUDES CONFLICT OF{INTE y EBLOWER POLICIES.

v

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C,"LINE 19:
ALL DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUE

FORM 990, PART IX, LINE 11G, OTHER FEES;:
SECURITY:

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

PARK CLEANING & MAINTENANCE:
PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

12,685.

PARKING GARAGE:

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 48,218.
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 7,484.
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0.
TOTAL EXPENSES 55,702.
EVENT PLANNER:

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 61,028.
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 9,472.
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0.
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

LHA 432211 01-15-25

30
07531125 794202 94-05092.000 2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



Schedule O (Form 990) 2024

75

Page 2

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORP 47-3549741

TOTAL EXPENSES

70,500.

COMMUNICATION CONSULTANT:

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 40,326.
MANAGEMENT ANDAGENERAL EXPENSES 6,259.
FUNDRAISING E SES 0.
TOTAL EXPENSES 46,585.
TOTAL OT ORM 990, PART IX, LINE 11G, COL A 578,423.

432212 01-29-25

07531125 794202 94-05092.000

Schedule O (Form 990) 2024
31
2024.05000 MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND D 94-05091



‘\l
(o))

PROGRAMMING



MPC PR SGRAMS - :VEM ™S REPORT

REPORT

MPC 2025 SUMMARY

—

[\

S




A

KEY HiC 'LIGHTS 7 25

® 140 Total MidtowpdEventStHo 5 in 2024)
® 50 3 Party Events Hosted o in 2024)

® 20,899 Total Park Attendges (14,92

® 13,677 Event Tickets Sold (

® *67 Media Placements (111 in 2024

SPECIAL NOTES:
Eventrbrite was retired in Q4 and event ticketing began to transition to the Midtown website;
Media placements for Q1, April, Q3, and Q4 are noted; some are not available due to PR/Marketing transition.

¥ midtown MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT
ZN HousToON




Midtown 30

Coffee with a Cop Bagby 70
HueMan:Shelter: Urban Paths Walks
HueMan Shelter Day

Juneteenth Line Dancing Class/Make Music Day Houston
National Night Out

Sounds of Midtown

Sounds of Midtown

Transformative Theater (micro grant winner)

Midtown

“midtown MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT
HOUSTON



‘Emidtown MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT
HOUSTON




gmidtown MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT
HOUSTON






Midtown 3000
Bagby 445
Midtown

El Festival de la Salsa

Exposure

F45 Community Event
Field Trip: Clear Creek ISD
Field Trip: Hempstead ISD
Field Trip: Lanier Middle School (HISD)

100
75
750
Field Trip: Magnolia Elementary School (Pearland I1SD)
Field Trip: Unknown Schools

Hip Hop in the Park

Houston Food Fest

“midtown MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT
HOUSTON



Midtown
Midtown

International Women’s Fest

Keeping Clients Active (Jab Lab

La Calle Taco Eating Contest
OMG Food Fest
Reliant + Space City Weather 10-year Annive

Bagby

Soleties Field Day
Soleties Run & Sip

Soleties Women's Yoga Wellness

-midtown  mpc 2025 SUMMARY REPORT
HOUSTON






BAGBY . ‘\RK PRO” RAV  'ING

sl !
CHALK ON THE BLO

Chalk Art

MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT




BAGBY . ‘\RK PRO” RAV  'ING

HIT | YOGA
Fitness Series Fithess Series

Fitness Sé

MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT




A

BAGBY . ‘\RK PRO” RAV  'ING

MOVIE NIGHT MOVIE NIGHT
Pre-movie Games + Entertainment New + Classic Films

[J§ midtown  Mpc 2025 SUMMARY REPORT 10




BAGBY . ‘\RK PRO” RAV  'ING

TEACH YOU TUESD
Arts + Crafts

MONTH 2025 REPORT




A

BALDW\. PARK PF ,GR’ "IMING

= K% -
. » ~:‘:’ \ 3

- e W
e i I

SOUND BATH SOUND BATH
MEDITATION MEDITATION

SOouU
MEDITA

idtown MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT 14
u O N




MIDTOW 'PARK P” OGP MMING

-
=
3

-

-

=
=
=

il

CHILDREN’S STORYTIME
Children’s Summer Series

FAMILY CAPOEIR/
Family Fitness

MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT




MIDTOW 'PARK P’ +ZA " ROGRAMMING

L“'MOIP!UJ ’V’
—anldtown

/uMo!plu, ! ’

SL
!WA.

POP UP ON THE PLAZ
Games

MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT




2026 Ph "GRAMM' G Sr {EDULE

PARK

Chalk on the Block : Bagby
Children’s Storytime erie Midtown
Family Capoeira Midtown
HIIT : | Bagby
Movie Night ice Bagby
Pop Up on the Plaza

Sound Bath Meditations 2nd Wednesday

Teach You Tuesday 1st Tuesday

Yappy Hour Bagby Park Spring

Yappy Hour Midtown Park Summer

Yoga 2nd & 4th Saturday 10:30am — 11:30am

Zumba Tuesday 6:30pm — 7:30pm Midtown

"W midtown
[ MIGIOWN  MONTH 2025 REPORT




2026 3 RARTY +' AENT”'S

PARK

Soleties Run & Sip ‘ Bagby
Houston Holi Festival of Colors : Midtown
Exposure Bagby
Earned Recovery : idtown
Houston Latin Fest ' Midtown
Exposure Bagby
Lemon Drop Festival August 2

El Festival de la Salsa September 19t

Exposure September 20t

Exposure November 15t

"W midtown
o Bbe bl MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT




A

NEW Mr "CHANDI® . GR” PHICS

"W midtown AT
| L Pl MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPO .



A

EVENT L "LENDAR

"W midtown
5 et MPC 2025 SUMMARY REPORT .




<

COMMUNICATIONS



MPC MARKETINC AEF ORT




2025 MARKETIN? AEr DRT

Overview:

check-in workflows.

After a Q2 transition, proactive media outreach ramped up in Q
generated positive coverage on Midtown’s dining, retail,
development activity, and approval of the new Service and
Improvement Plan; Hue:Man Shelter coverage began in August,
peaked in September, and continued through November, with a Q4
impressions lift supported by a Conde Nast Traveler feature (also
republished by MSN).




2025 MARKETIN? AEr DRT

Overview:

website-driving format; while Q1-Q2 data is unave
transition, Q3-Q4 monthly newsletters reached nearly 40,000
inboxes per quarter and engagement strengthened in Q4.

Website results were especially favorable in 2025, reaching

page views —with half occurring in Q4 —and Q4 2025 doub

traffic compared to Q4 2024; notably, MPC event pages now
account for 32% of total site traffic (up from 5.6% in January),
reflecting the impact of moving event registration onto the Midtown
site.

On social, audience growth remained a major bright spot, with
significant year-over-year gains in both Q3 and Q4 (2,306 new
followers in Q3; 2,701 in Q4) and impressions continuing to climb
(1.24M in Q3; 1.50M in Q4), providing a strong foundation as
communications transitioned in-house and strategies evolve into




)°

© =

2025 Press Menti as

Overview:

During Q2 of this past year, the communications teag

transition, but was fully engaged with active medid

by Q3. The Q3 and Q4 media coverage reflects this activity, witl
news reports on Midtown’s restaurant, lounge and retail offering
development projects, and approval of Midtown’s new Service
Improvement Plan, among other topics.

The Hue:Man Shelter project started to receive coverage in August,
peaking in September and continuing through November. In October,
Conde Nast Traveler published a story on Houston’s “Melting-Pot
Communities” (including a feature on Midtown), that was also picked up
by MSN, which has a global, digital readership of more than 100 million
people; this contributed to the spike in impressions in Q4.



Towering mural reflects Earth and Big Drear2
0 xX0Mne @

Total Number of
Placements + Mentions

Midtown murals share stories of
homeless people in Houston who
helped paint them

Y IRERENN]

Y- ‘Illlﬂ%z:z:;"

’r"
- 2
r.'.a .'~

The G pabi ot iwvalabon be ' o Fu asMir S ale frueil wiers whumed modevirs g pad ba
el wen 1 anwen

‘midtown
HOUSTON



Total Number of Tota
Placements + Mentions

The Houston Fire Museum,

-midtown  apriL 2025 REPORT (7 ‘
HOUSTON urtes 4 ton Fire Mu



Web Data 2025

N

In September of 2025, we switched from Eve te
Midtown website for event listings and registration.
switch, MPC event pages now account for 32% of all'site
traffic, compared to 5.6% in January.

Overview:

There were 280,000 web page views in 2025, and halfto
those views occurred in Q4. Compared Q4 2024, Q4 20
doubled in site traffic.

If we maintain our year round marketing efforts, we project
that we can go from 100,000 views to 400,000 views per year.




MPC Event D

280,000

Web Views

1,133

Event Registrants

BAGBY'
PARK

Pop Up on the Plaza
Free Sat, May 3+ 10:00AM Free

Free

Chalk on the Block

FEB 4, 5:00 PM

MMD Board Meeting

2 MIDTOWN OFFICES, 410 PIERCE ST SUITE
in Midtown October Yappy Hour at Glover Park! 2024 Coffee with a Cop in Midtown 2024 National N Join us for Zumba in Midtown, a high-energy 255 1S TEL OORIGONEERENGE ROOM

Fri, Oct 25 » 4:30 PM Houston Houston workout that combines fitness and fun! Please join our quarterly meeting.

Free Wed, Oct 2 * 7:30 AM Tue, Oct 1+ 5:00 PM

GLOVER e
¥ikx  YAPPY HOUR |ocrosen z5, ——

LEARN MORE EARN MORE

Free Free

e |

=

dtown Event Page



Social Media Dat- 202.

Overview:

In @3, Midtown’s social media performan
year-over-year growth, driven by increased visibili

to last year. Impressions totaled 1,236,391, up more than
from 2024. Post link clicks saw a slight decline, decreasin
(-13.1%), as content during this period focused more on
and storytelling than direct traffic-driving campaigns.

In Q4, performance reflected a shift in strategy and initiatives.
Engagement decreased slightly to 0.9% compared to 4.5% in 2024,
and post link clicks declined to 136 (-92.1%), largely due to the
absence of major seasonal initiatives such as Mistletoe Market and
influencer-led campaigns that previously drove high traffic. Despite
this, audience growth remained strong, with 2,701 new followers
gained—up more than 1,300% from 2024 —and page and profile
impressions increased to 1,495,098 (+27.9%). This quarter also
marked a transition to an in-house communications team, reflecting a
strategic shift in how content is planned, executed, and measured
moving forward.

5
=3



Digital Outco

@MidtownHou

Engagements 4.86%
New Followers 2,306
Impressions 1,236,391

Post Link Clicks 73

-midtown o3 ReEPORT 2025
HOUSTON



Digital Outco

Engagements 4.46%
New Followers 2,701
Impressions 1,495,098

Post Link Clicks 136

-midtown o4 REPORT2025
HOUSTON




Newsletter Data 202

reporting focuses on Q3 and Q4, when the ne
place.

Alongside the platform change, Midtown cleaned up the e
shifted from a long, text-heavy newsletter to a more skimma
designed to drive readers to the Midtown website. This helped'e
emails were reaching the right audience and made it easier for
residents to quickly find relevant information.

In Q3 and Q4, Midtown sent monthly newsletters reaching nearly
40,000 inboxes per quarter. Engagement strengthened in Q4, with
more residents opening and interacting with the newsletters as
year-end programming and community updates increased. Overall, the
updated newsletter approach proved to be an effective and reliable
way to keep residents informed and engaged.

5
=3



Q3 Newslette A

july 2025 NEWSLE TTER

During the third quarter, Midtown sent three newsletters to
residents, reaching nearly 40,000 total inboxes. Thousands of
people opened the emails and hundreds clicked to learn more
about events, businesses, and community updates, showing
y interest throughout the summer.

gagement increased as the quarter went on, with the
wsletter performing especially well. This tells us that

SUMMER ISN'T OVER YET

Here's what’s happening next in your neighborhood. 39 637
; ,
Emails Sent

‘midtown
HOUSTON

1.3%

Click-Through Rate

Open Rate

13



Q4 Newslette A

october 2025
NEWSLETTER

Midtown in Motion

From community walks to creative milestones, Midtown was full of
movement thia month Here’s what vnil miaht’ve missed

October - December 2025

During the fourth quarter, Midtown sent three newsletters to
residents, reaching nearly 39,000 inboxes. More people opened and
read the emails in Q4 than in the previous quarter, showing increased
interest as Midtown programming and year-end updates picked up.

monthly newsletter performed well, with October and

were an effective and reliable way to
helping keep the community informed

1%

Click-Through Rate

Emails Sent Open Rate

14



Digital Ad Data 2025

Overview:

greater Houston area to come to Midtown.

All non recurring ads were in Q4, falling in conjunctig
special events and the holiday season.

Excluding the ads with larger budgets, the highest
performing ads were event specific (Sounds of Midtown /
Chalk on the Block) or detail specific (Movie Night). For the
Movie Night events we included the specific movie in the
visuals which in turn provided a higher reach and link clicks.

5
=3



Digital Ads Highlight<

( ",
> ‘

«

m MOVIE NIGHT
BEETLEJUICE BEETLEJUICE

FRIDAY OCTOBER 17

Movie Night (October)

Views: 125,350 Reach: 71,620
Link Clicks: 1,375 Cost: $295.49

MOST VIEWS

SOUNDS OF MIDTOWN

RJAZZY HOLIDAY UNDER THE-STARS

FRIDAY OCTOBER 17

Movie Night (Octob

Views: 125,350 Reach: 71,620 & Reach: 46,436
Link Clicks: 1,375 Cost: $295.49 i : O Cost: $500.14

HIGHEST REACH OST LINK CLICKS

16



- = [ | ..f |
R v .U

Pop Up On The Plaza 2,830 $635.47

Movie Night 3,681 $599.60
Teach You Tuesday 30,777 904 $99.93
Sound Bath Meditation 62,738 1,087 $199.75
Family Capoeria 34,191 1 $199.76
Zumba 16,701 $99.56
HIIT 54,275 $199.79
Yoga 57,289 $199.83

‘midtown
HOUSTON



Q4 - Digital |

Pop Up On The Plaza 4,385 $589.39
Movie Night 203,308 4,416 $551.02
Teach You Tuesday 2,427 $149.74
Sound Bath Meditation 98,269 2,809 $299.29
Family Capoeria 43,759 2,410 $299.52
Zumba 22,481 $149.60

HIIT 22,081 $124.81

Yoga 20,475 $112.27
Yappy Hour 28,404 $99.88

Pan Afro Techno 85,788 53,887 737 $199.59

Chalk on the Block 106,832 57,765 $299.52 }
Sounds of Midtown 86,212 46,436 $500.14 L N '

“midtown . = &

HOUSTON



)°

MPC 2026 Projects:

In 2026, Midtown Parks ” y

Midtown Parks Conservancy merchandi

Launch Midtown-branded t-shirts and tote bags (design, pr¢
and roll-out)

Promote parks programming + events

Ongoing promotion of park classes, activations, and events through
social media and paid ads

Add/refresh promotion through the lke kiosk to support park visibility
and attendance

Segmented email marketing
Build and send segmented newsletters focused on parks
programming and event updates (separate from the general e-news)

19



MAINTENANCE



midtown
HOUSTON

ark weekly service scheduled weekly on Wednesdays and Thursdays for
d trash piékup.

or lift stations and HVAC submitted for approval.
ghting. Proposal submitted for approval.

project approved by MRA Board.

tich refresh project February 2026 per LMC contract.

e Midtown Park Dg iwn replacement project Matich 2026 per LMC contract

per LMC contract

e Midtown Park V )26 per LMC contract

Bagby Park mulch replacement project March 2026 per LMC contract

District overall
e Continue to coordinate with our service maintenance team including lawn ser,

service and irrigation repairs when needed along the Midtown maintaine

throughout the District.

COH owned parks
e Baldwin Park and Glover Park maintenance scheduled on Tuesdays. This includes
mowing and biweekly trash removal.
e Baldwin Park playground mulch refresh completed 2025.
e Baldwin Park DG trail refresh completed 2025
e Baldwin Park playground mulch refresh project February 2026 per LMC contract.
e Baldwin Park lawn fertilization project March 2026 per LMC contract

410 Pierce St., Suite 355 Houston, TX 77002

Phone 713.526.7577 Fax 713.526.7519 houstonmidtown.com




midtown
HOUSTON

e Baldwin Park mulch replacement project March 2026 per LMC contract

lover Park lawn and tree fertilization project March 2026 per LMC contract
aver Park mulch replacement project March 2026 per LMC contract

Park and Baldwin Park seasonal planting March 2026 per LMC contract

Office buildings

Upcoming Project
e Duct cleaning

e Bagby Street, Bagby Par

hardscape and softscap

Park. The project goal

necessary material adjus

resh project. Project to refresh
Street and at Midtown and Bagby
baseline conditions and make

410 Pierce St., Suite 355 Houston, TX 77002
Phone 713.526.7577 Fax 713.526.7519 houstonmidtown.com



SECURITY



Midtown Parks
Conservancy

2025

n Review

@E@@EIW

TX PSB C15942 | C15942A | C20262




Midtown Parks Conservancy

Additionally, the S.E.A.L. Security 15 ; i erning dangerous or potentially threatening situations, activity, and observations
of incidents that occurred in the area. All calls ha e the Midtown Parks Conservancy information that could impact operations

and reputation.

About S.E.A.L. Security Solutions LLC

S.E.A.L. Security is a privately owned security company wi tonio. S.E.A.L. Security has been contracted to safeguard your

community and to be on call during high-risk situations. med and utilize marked vehicles to conduct patrols and

maintain a proactive position to secure your community.

prevent crime. In the interest of safety, it is asked that clients and residents do

greatly appreciated.

Disclaimer

The information contained in this report is based on the information at the time of reporting, from sources believed to b nd is true to the best of

S.E.A.L’s knowledge. S.E.A.L. provides the Board information in the report for the Board’s sole use and purpose in i d execution of its
authorized duties. S.E.A.L. does not intend that the information contained in this report be disclosed to, relied on y, anyone other than
those authorized to receive such information. The information and the reports may contain personal, private, rwise identifying information and may
compromise the safety and security of others. As such, the publication, dissemination, or disclosute of the or information therein of any kind to
anyone not authorized to receive such information shall be at the sole risk and liability of the Board, its members, and those authorized to receive such

information, and each shall hold S.E.A.L. harmless and indemnify S.E.A.L. for any and all liability arising from any publication or disclosure.



*.E.A.L. Security Services

K9 Accompanied
Officer Foot and
Vehicle Patrols

Dedicated Alarm

Hotline Response

A U

Health and
Welfare Chiecks

Clearing
Resiccntial Homes
upon Request

‘-

Emergency Suspicior’s Activity
Response Teams Response

24/7 Emergency
Dispatch

Trespasser
Removal

Off-Duty
Emergency
Response *

Vacation
Watch

Daily and Monthly
Incident Reporting

GPS
Tracking

Criminal Trespass
Warning Issuance

Electronic
Reporting System

*Off-duty response times vary based on nearest available officer. When appropriate, law enforcement is notified.




124

2025 Summar Midtown Parks
Category 2025 Totals

Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec| 2025 | 2024
Rule Violations 190 179 126 72 129 65 59| 1,528 1,720
Information 12 14 16 10 13 11 5 162 400
EMS/FD/PD 3 7 3 9 5 2 7 53 79
Assistance 3 5 3 4 1 1 2 52 200
Damage/Deface 2 2 - - - 1 - 14 53
Suspicious Person - 12 111
Ctw - 9 9
Suspicious Vehicle 1 7 29
BMV 1 5 2
Disturbance/Noise - 5 6
Alarm 1 3 4
Theft - 3 4
Vehicle Collision 1 3 2
Arrest - 2 6
Assault - 2 7
Animal 1 1 2
Suspicious Activity - 1 19
Dispute - - 2
Robbery - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

2025 hi-lo




.. 125
Suspicious Person

Midtown Drerce 1% INCIDENT CATEGORIES
Parks 2025

Rule Violations
82%




126
2025 Midtown Parks

Rule Violations

300

250

200

150

/\

N

Dec

100

50

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

—2024 —2025



EMS/FD/PD 2025 Midtown Parks

18
16
14

12

A
YR,

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

Sep '} Dec

—2024 —202



128
Damage/Deface 2025 Midtown Parks

12

10

Jan



129
Suspicious Perso 2025 Midtown Parks

30

25

20

15

10

Jan Feb



130
2025 Midtown Parks

Suspicious Vehic

7

Jan Dec



131
Suspicious Activi 2025 Midtown Parks

4

Jan



2025 Incident Categories Stacked by Month 2025 Midtowg, Parks

300
250
200
150

100

50

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Aug Sep Nov Dec

MW Rule Violations B Information m EMS/FD/PD M Assistance age/Deface

M Suspicious Person B CTW W Suspicious Vehicle ®BMV W Disturbance/Noise
W Alarm B Theft m Vehicle Collision M Arrest Assault

B Animal M Suspicious Activity






INCIDENT REPORT
January 2026



Prepared for Midtown Parks Conservancy

About Incide

urity Dispatch Center may receive calls concerning dangerous or potentially
, and observations of incidents that occurred in the area. All calls have been

S.E.A.L. Security € rked vehicles to conduct patrols and maintain a proactive

position to secure your community

S.E.A.L. Security’s expanded caniy
patrol setvices, some K9s are trai 5.E.A.L. Security’s specially trained
tools to deter and prevent crime. In

Everyone’s assistance is greatly apprect

Disclaimer

The information contained in this report is based on the sources

relied on, or otherwise used by, anyone other than those authorized to receive such i
information and the reports may contain personal, private, or otherwise identifying information and may,
compromise the safety and security of others. As such, the publication, dissemination, or disclosure o
report or information therein of any kind to anyone not authorized to receive such information s
sole risk and liability of the Board, its members, and those authorized to receive such informati
shall hold S.E.A.L. harmless and indemnify S.E.A.L. for any and all liability arising from an

disclosure.



2026 SUMMARY PAGE

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec | YTD

INCIDENT
S

-
|

| 4

v

Damage/Deface

Disturbance/Noise 0

Information

Rule Violations 26 ' ‘
Suspicious Person 1

Midtown District and Parks Hotline — 832.900.7700

Please call the Midtown District Hotline to report suspicious activity or anything that seems out of place.



THURSDAY, JANUARY 1

1:00 a.m. The officer removed a homeless male sleeping at exit 4.

7:00 a.m. The offteer removed a

side of the park.

dual sleeping in front of the fence gate on the McGowan

FRIDAY, JANUARY 2

respassing in Bagby



SATURDAY, JANUARY 3

10:08 a.m. The officer posted pictures of park activity.

MONDAY, JAN

TUESDAY, JANUARY 6

4:06 p.m. A district officer conducting a property check at Bagby Park, 415 Gray, removg
male sleeping on a bench.






THURSDAY, JANUARY 8

11:00 p.m. A district officer pat
near the taco stand.

erers and another person loitering

FRIDAY, JANUARY 9

9:10 p.m. The officer noticed a seated male who had
Main by Camden Apartments. Another person who



10:00 p.m. A district officer patrolling La Calle removed a homeless male bothering customers and park
visitors.

SATURDAY, JA 10

7:00 p.m. The officer removed a at exit 1.

eless male sleeping/loiterig

A

SUNDAY, JANUARY 11

5:00 a.m. A district officer patrolling Elizabeth Glover Park removed a loitering homeless male.

6:00 a.m. The officer removed a homeless male sleeping at exit 3.



alle removed a homeless person who was bothering

TUESDAY, JANU/

5:07 p.m. A district officer was dis idtown Park to monitor an event until the park officer
arrived.

6:45 p.m. The officer monitoreg

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 14

2:00 a.m. While patrolling Baldwin Park, a district officer removed a loiterer.



THURSDAY, JANUARY 15

1:45 p.m. The officer removed a homeless male sleeping in the grass.

6:00 p.m. The officer reported there had been no power for several days in an area on the McGowej
side of the park.



SUNDAY, JANUARY 18

4:00 a.m. During dperty chec
loitering behind the stage.

district officer removed a homeless individual

1:24 p.m. The officer reported a
complained about the dog. Whe
Incident #094448.

ressive dog in the dog p er visitors trying to enter

e owner was no e/dog was reported to animal control.

\ SRl g
'lsééffw =



7:00 p.m. The officer reported fallen/broken traffic signage.

MONDAY, JANUZA

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20

5:00 a.m. A district officer patrolling Baldwin Park closed an open door to a 4-door sedan.



Y
o

ark, a district officer removed a familiar loiterer sleeping on

N2

4:57 p.m. A district officer arrived at Midtown Park to Or an even

6:24 p.m. The officer noted Zumba participants were ended at 7:

ng for

THURSDAY, JANUARY 22

1:00 a.m. A district officer patrolling Elizabeth Glover Park removed two homeless people.

2:51 p.m. The officer posted a picture of items found in the park.



a red Tesla id in the garage with the doors unlocked. The police

TUESDAY, JANUARY 27

12:00 a.m. The officer removed a male sleeping at exit 4.




11:33 a.m. A district officer was contacted by dispatch regarding an individual hiding by the swings who
was being chased by the police. The officer searched the area and found no one suspicious. The police
made contact with another S.E.A.L. Security officer, who stated that the subject had taken off.

THURSDAY, JANUARY 29

2:00 a.m. A district officer condu over Park removed a loitering

homeless individual.

6:47 a.m. The officer removed a homeless male sleeping in the garage.



he Front 90 fountain observed a male charging his phone and
explained that he was on private property. The subject
removed the subject. A CTW was issued.

END REPOR



PARKING



MIDTOWN PARK PARKING FACILITY
OPERATIONS Overview

Pride Festival, OMG Food Festival, International Women’s Festival, Salsa Festival,

25 2 07/31/2025 _ 08/31/2025 09/30/2025 10/31/2025 _ 11/30/2025 _ 12/31/2025 Total

Gross Profit
Revenue
Daily Revenue 1,437.54 1,259.18 2,887.08 34.0 4,352.64 5,326.67 2,220.07 9,425.11 7.042.59 4,321.37 4,917.80 49,075.51
Monthly Revenue 5,412.50 5,412.50 5,412.50 4 A12.50 5.412.50 5,912.50 5412.50 5,827.50 12,264.00 - 25,825.00 87,716.50
Event Revenue - - - - 1,150.00 - - - - - - 1,150.00
Total Revenue 6,850.04 6,671.68 8,299.58 7,263.91 10,915.14 11,239.17 #,632.57 15,252.61 19,306.59 4,321.37 30,742.80 137,942.01
2026 Focuses:

Winpark will continue tracking all |08

Below you will find a list of continued efforts in 2026:

- Winpark will continue to contact surrounding establi tionships an
awareness to the garage. This will include local deale
obtain additional revenue by housing any vehicles needed.
dealerships such as Knapp Chevrolet, Texas Direct Auto an

feedback as we have seen a recent uptick in weather-related damage in Houston.

e  We will continue to market the garage for use on weekends as well as offering cont
those employees of local businesses that may be in need. This is always a foc
continue in 2026.

2026 Monthly Contracts:
- Tarantino Properties: 50 parkers at $100 per month per space on a month-to-month basis

- Park Houston: 50 designated parking spaces at $100 per month per space for a duration of 12 months



Property/Building Operations

Garage Improvements:

Monthly pressure washing of all stairwells to improve appearance of the garage

We are looking forward to working with the MPC team for our upcoming event season.
We are fully geared up for the first event of the year on 2/28/26.

Winpark has obtained new updated quotes for pressure washing, sweeping and new
trash cans to enhance the overall appearance of the garage.

ork for reference).

@
Clearance: 8- 2"

The Lightning Pay enforcement cameras have been installed and are now live at the Midtow
garage. Parkers can now scan the QR codes throughout the garage within the first 10 minut
arrival and process their payments virtually and conveniently from their cell phones. The
can be set to accommodate our daily rates and can even be modified for any set pr
rates.

Winpark is working with BP and Midtown to remove the inactive parking equi
garage. We are anticipating completion of this by 2/27.
We have replaced the garage porter in efforts to maintain the integrity of the garage.






ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT

This Assignment Agreement (this “Assignment Agreement”), dated effective as of
, 2026 (the “Assignment Effective Date”), is entered
into by and een Midtown Improvement and Development Corporation d/b/a Midtown
a Texas nonprofit corporation (the ‘“Assignor”), and Midtown
hority, a public non-profit local government corporation (the “Assignee” or
alized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed

aintenance Services Agreement, and the Authority is
ilities of the Assignor under the Maintenance Services

ients are expressly permitted by the Maintenance
Services Agre i i i at the Assignor delivers written notice thereof to

NOW, THEREFORE, i i gveyances, agreement and benefits
to both parties hereto, the Ass i :

2. Governing Law; Binding Effect. This Assi verned by and
construed in accordance with the laws of t

3. Notice. In conjunction with its approval a

Assignment Agreement pursuant to the requir
Services Agreement, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

4. Counterparts. This Assignment Agreement may be executed in one or more cou
each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy of this Assignment Agr
all of which, when taken together, shall be deemed to constitute one
agreement. Delivery of such counterparts by electronic mail shall be de
manual delivery.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Assignee and Assignor have executed this Assignment
Agreement to be made effective as of the Assignment Effective Date.

ASSIGNEE:

MIDTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

SIGNOR:

IDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION D/B/A
MIDTOWN S CONSERVANCY




Exhibit A
Maintenance Services Agreement
[Attached]




AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
D/B/A MIDTOWN PARKS CONSERVANCY AND
LAWN MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
FOR MAINTENANCE SERVICES

t for Maintenance Services (this “Agreement ) is made by and between the
NT AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION D/B/A MIDTOWN PARKS
a Texas nonprofit corporation, and LAWN MANAGEMENT CompPaNY LLC
s limited liability company, and shall be effective as of January 1,2026

{ organized pursuant to Chapter 3, Texas Business
Organ1z2 idtown Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”)
with the implementa
Zone Number T

management a

he “Zone”), by, among other things, providing
e boundaries of the Zone; and

WHEREAS, pursuant at certain Operating Agreement by and between MPC and the
Authority made effective July ate, manage, maintain, and preserve
the Parks (as defined herein) ¢ i

Contractor to provide certain landscape and mamiténa al cleanup services,
including the removal of trash, debris, and other u

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to specify theifft€spective u i with respect
to the services to be performed under this Agree

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration
agreements herein contained, the Parties agree as follo

Section 1. Definitions

The terms “Agreement,” “Authority,” “Board,” “Contractor,” “Effective Date
and “Zone” shall have the meanings assigned them in the introductory para
Agreement. Unless otherwise set forth herein, all capitalized terms used herei
following meanings:

have the

“Basic Coniract Services” means such landscape and maintenance services and general
cleanup services, including the removal of trash, debris and other unsightly objects, and other
services described in this Agreement and in Exhibits A and B attached hereto.

“Chief Operating Officer” means the individual serving as the Chief Operating Officer of
MPC and includes his or her designated representative.

-1-



“City” means the City of Houston, Texas.

“Expenses” means those reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket costs expressly
authorized in writing by the Chief Operating Officer or the Board in accordance with the terms of

this Agreem

(a) Bagby Park, which is located within the Zone at the comer of Bagby
ton, Texas, and consists of approximately 0.6887 acre of public park
g and related facilities, but excludes the retail restaurant facility,
cated thereon; and (b) Midtown Park and Plaza, which is located within
ity block bounded by McGowen Street, Anita Street, Main Street, and
2md consists of the following two parcels, excluding the retail
suntain located thereon: (i) a 0.5096 acre of public park

Lrvices” means supplemental landscape maintenance services,
including labor, materials, ang i J orovides on weekends, for special
events, or under other special j equested from time to time by MPC.

Section 2. Service Area

e Zone (the “Service
ereto as Exhibit C.

The services referenced he
Area”). The Service Area is more specifically dep

Section 3. Engagement of Contractor and Sg¢

(a) MPC hereby engages the Cont
engagement and agrees to provide, furnish, or per
and workmanlike manner.

(b) Contractor acknowledges and understands that the services to be provided
this Agreement are being performed for the public benefit.

(c) Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable municipal codes and
the City, including, but not limited to, safety measures and procedures; and all appli
regulations of the State and the United States of America, including but not li
environmental laws and regulations.

(d)  Contractor agrees that any personnel provided by it in the performance of this
Agreement shall be experienced, competent, and careful workers skilled in the duties necessary to
provide the services required under this Agreement. MPC may demand the replacement of any of
Contractor’s personnel who, in MPC’s sole discretion, do not meet the standards for safety,
professionalism, or horticultural knowledge required to fulfill the requirements of this Agreement.

-



15

(e) Contractor is an independent contractor and neither Contractor nor any employees
or personnel supplied or used by Contractor in the performance of this Agreement shall be
considered employees, agents, or subcontractors of MPC for any purpose whatsoever. MPC shall
not be respon51ble for the supervision or compensation of any such personnel; for withholding of
income, so ecurity, other payroll taxes; or for the coverage of any worker’s compensation
benefits. s pertaining to such personnel shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

DNE DOLLARS AND THIRTY-FOUR CENTS ($5,681.34),
ensation for the performance of Basic Contract Services under
partial month shall be prorated based on 260 workdays per

jired number of man-hours per day, the monthly
2 an-hour for each man-hour not worked. Contractor
shall submit supporting docu tion evidencing the man-hours worked in form and substance
acceptable to the Chief Operat

portion of Contractor’s employees
from providing the services contemp ~ | Contractor shall immediately notify

weather conditions. If the Contractor and MPCYagrec D: .m. of such inclement
weather conditions that such conditions will preven ing all or a portion
of the services scheduled to be performed that da weather day
(“Weather Day”™).

(d) Upon the determination of a Weath
Operating Officer a plan of action detailing how and
that Contractor was unable to provide due to inclement
is not presented within five days of the Contractor’s inclement weather notice to the C
Operating Officer, then MPC shall deduct the sum of $31.00 per hour for each man-ho
worked from the monthly compensation.

(e) No deductions shall be made from the monthly compensation for
worked on the MPC-approved holidays set forth in Appendix I, attached hereto
herein. Any modification of the number of days and man-hours to be
Agreement, must be in writing and signed by the Chief Operating Officer.

d under this

(0 MPC may request from time-to-time that the Contractor provide certain
Supplemental Contract Services. As compensation for such Supplemental Contract Services, MPC
shall pay Contractor a daily rate of $992.00 for the services of four (4) workers to work eight (3)



160

hours per day. MPC shall pay Contractor a one-half day rate of $496.00 for the services of four
(4) workers to work four (4) hours per day.

(g) Contractor shall submit a written invoice and any supporting documentation in form
ceptable to the Chief Operating Officer for services performed in accordance with
ontractor will not be compensated separately for attending meetings of the
aff regarding services performed pursuant to this Agreement. Invoices for

ice and the same is reviewed and approved by the Board. Neither the
Board shall unreasonably delay the review or payment of any

Afttention: David
410 Pierce Stree
Houston, TX 7

Section 5.

(@
submit, in advance of incurring su approval of such
reimbursement of Expenses to the Chief Operating re or concurrent

with payment of such approved reimbursement, Cox
copy of any and all receipts/invoices for such Ex
appropriate certifications/representations that su

to the cost of tools, equipment, fuel, fertilizers, etc.

(©) The Contractor is solely responsible for any and all costs associated wi
and proper disposal of any trash and debris. Contractor agrees to properly dispose
debris in accordance with any applicable federal or state law and any municipal o
to do so may result in the termination of this Agreement. MPC reserves
satisfactory evidence from the Contractor regarding the disposal of anyW§fash and debris.
Contractor agrees to provide such evidence upon request. Failure to provide such satisfactory
evidence may result in the termination of this Agreement.

Section 6. Workmanship and Inspection

The Contractor warrants that all work shall be performed in a good and workmanlike

A4-



manner and to the satisfaction of MPC and in complete accordance with the specifications set forth
in this Agreement, including Exhibits A and B attached hereto. MPC may conduct periodic
random inspections of the work performed. MPC may require at its option joint inspections with
the Contractor at a mutually convenient date and time or upon at least 24 hours prior written

icy of MPC to achieve a drug-free workforce and workplace; therefore,
on, dispensation, possession, sale, or use of illegal drugs or alcohol by
s or subcontractors while providing services to or on behalf of MPC or
hority or the City (including the Parks) is strictly prohibited.

iing services required under this Agreement while
, ; 1 or while in possession of any drug-related
paraphernalia ong : , es owned by the Authority or the City (including
the Parks).

Section 8.

work on behalf of MPC for which

by the Chief Operating Officert

Section 9. Term and Termination; Effect @

(a) Except as otherwise provided by s
Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date afidfemain i i 1,2026 (the
“Initial Term”). At the conclusion of the Initial
on a month-to-month basis, unless otherwise te

(b) If MPC causes an assignment of its righ
any interest therein to become effective on or before December 31, 2026 (the “Assign
Effective Date”), the term of this Agreement under such assignment (the “Assigned Agreem
will remain effective from the Assignment Effective Date until December 31, 2027, whi
will constitute the initial term of the Assigned Agreement.

majority
s as set forth

() Additionally, the Assigned Agreement may be renewed or extend
vote of the Board for two additional one-year periods on the same terms and co
herein or such other terms and conditions as the Board deems appropriate.

(d) MPC may terminate this Agreement at any time with or without cause by giving 30
days’ written notice to Contractor. On receiving such notice of termination, Contractor shall,
unless the notice directs otherwise, discontinue all services under this Agreement 30 days after
receipt of such notice. TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND RECEIPT OF
PAYMENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED ARE CONTRACTOR’S ONLY REMEDIES FOR

55



162

MPC’S EXERCISE OF IT’S RIGHT TO TERMINATE, WHICH DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A
DEFAULT OR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR WAIVES ANY CLAIM
(OTHER THAN A CLAIM FOR PAYMENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED), IT MAY HAVE
NOW OR IN THE FUTURE FOR FINANCIAL LOSSES OR OTHER DAMAGES RESULTING

may terminate this Agreement immediately and without notice for good cause
by Contractor. Default by Contractor occurs if:

its duties undetgthi but is not obligated to, deliver a written notice to
Contractor describing the defa

ation date to a later date to allow
re the default and Contractor does
the termination is ineffective. If

(2) MPC may, at
Contractor to cure the defaul
so to MPC’s satisfaction b¢
Contractor fails to cure the defa
on the date set forth in the notice.

(1) If a default occurs and Contractor Wi
must deliver a written notice to the Chief Operatin cer, with a
describing the default and the proposed termination daté. The date must
the Chief Operating Officer and the Board Chair receives such written notice. Contractor,
sole option, may extend the proposed termination date to a later date. If MPC cures the
before the proposed termination date, then the proposed termination is ineffective. If
to cure the default before the proposed termination date, then Contractor may
performance under this Agreement on the termination date.

Section 10. Insurance

(a) With no intent to limit Contractor’s liability or obligation for indemnification,
Contractor must provide and maintain insurance in full force and effect at all times during the term
of this Agreement and shall take appropriate action to ensure that MPC, the Authority, and the
City are named as additional insureds under Contractor’s insurance policies. All such insurance
policies shall be obtained from insurance companies with (1) a Certificate of Authority to transact

6



163

business in the State or (2) that are eligible non-admitted insurers in the State and have a Best’s
Credit Ratings rating of at least B+ or better and is assigned a Best’s Financial Size Category of
Class VI or higher, according to the current year’s A.M. Best’s Credit Ratings.

(b)
liability:

he insurance, at a minimum, must include the following coverages and limits of

Limit of Liability

Statutory for Workers Compensation
Bodily Injury of $1,000,000

Combined limits of $1,000,000 per
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate

$1,000,000 combined single limit per
automobiles used by the occurrence
the course of its perfo

Agreement including en

Defense costs are excluded from't
policy period.

. Aggregate limits are per 12-month

(c) Each insurance policy must requirg ent, that the
insurance carrier waives any rights of subrogation i e City, and
that the carrier shall give 30 days’ written notice Icy 1

may immediately terminate this Agreement and in such event, MPC will be immediately exc
from any further performance under this Agreement.

Section 11. Indemnification and Release

A. INDEMNITY _FOR PERSONAL INJURIES. THE C
COVENANTS AND AGREES TO, AND DOES HEREBY, INDEMN D HOLD
HARMLESS AND DEFEND MPC, THE AUTHORITY, AND THE C y AND THEIR
RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, AND REPRESENTATIVES (THE
“INDEMNIFIED PERSONS”), FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL SUITS OR
CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES OR INJURIES, INCLUDING DEATH, TO ANY AND ALL
PERSONS OR PROPERTY, WHETHER REAL OR ASSERTED, ARISING OUT OF OR
IN CONNECTION WITH ANY ACT, ERROR, OR OMISSION ON THE PART OF THE




CONTRACTOR, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, SERVANTS, EMPLOYEES, OR
SUBCONTRACTORS, AND THE CONTRACTOR DOES HEREBY ASSUME ALL
LIABILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR INJURIES, CLAIMS OR SUITS FOR THE
DAMAGES TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY, OF WHATSOEVER KIND OR

) WHETHER REAL OR ASSERTED, OCCURRING DURING OR
OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT AS A RESULT OF
SION ON THE PART OF THE CONTRACTOR, ITS OFFICERS,
TS, EMPLOYEES, OR SUBCONTRACTORS. SUCH
'HALL INCLUDE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CLAIMS OF
ODMSOEVER IN ANY WAY RESULTING FROM OR ARISING
TRACTOR’S WORK, SERVICES, AND OPERATIONS 1IN
TH LUDING OPERATIONS OF SUBCONTRACTORS, IF
OR OMISSIONS OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS OF

. RTY. CONTRACTOR SHALL LIKEWISE
INDEMNIFY A DL HA , THE AUTHORITY, AND THE CITY, FOR
ANY AND A 4 : 270 PROPERTY OF THE DISTRICT OR THE
CITY ARISI DUT OF OR TION WITH ANY AND ALL ACTS, ERRORS,
OR OMISSIONS OF CO R PR, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES,
SUBCONTRACTORS, LICENSEES, OR INVITEES.

C. RELEASE. CONTRAEI RELFASES EACH INDEMNIFIED
PERSON FROM ALL LI LITY ATH, DAMAGE, OR LOSS TO
PERSONS OR PROPER J TION WITH OR INCIDENTAL
TO PERFORMANCE UNDERWPHIS AGREE ' EVEN IF THE INJURY, DEATH,
DAMAGE, OR LOSS IS CAUSED BY T MNIFIED. ON’S SOLE OR
CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE AND/OR TE DEMNIE ON’S STRICT
PRODUCTS LIABILITY OR STRICT STAT RY LIAB

Section 12.  Cooperation; Inspection of Re §: Audi

Contractor agrees to keep such operating recq lating to t ices to be
hereunder as may be reasonably required by MPC, or bY state and federaJaw or regulatio
period of four years following the termination of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to allow
reasonable access to documents and records in Contractor’s possession, custody, or cont
MPC deems necessary to assist MPC in determining compliance with this Agreement.
further agrees to cooperate with MPC and, upon request, to provide necessary info
Chief Operating Officer in order to assist MPC in complying with agreements with
imposed by third parties, including but not limited to the City, the State and/ nited States
of America. Contractor’s obligations under this Section 12 shall survive t ination of this
Agreement.

Section 13.  Personal Liability of Public Officials

To the extent permitted by State law, no director, officer, employee or agent of MPC shall
be personally responsible for any liability arising under or growing out of the Agreement.

-8-



Section 14.  Notices

Any notice sent under this Agreement (except as otherwise expressly required) shall be
written and mailed or personally delivered to an officer of the receiving Party at the following
addresses:

TO MPC: Midtown Parks Conservancy
Attention; Chair, Board of Directors
410 Pierce Street, Suite 355
Houston, Texas 77002

Bracewell LLP

Attention: Clark Lord

Louisiana Street, Suite 2300
on, Texas 77002

IF TO THE CONTR
Amanda Avila

na Drive

Each Party may chang@its en notice in accordance with this
Section. Any communicatio : dance with this Section shall be
deemed to be given when s@imai 2 pn so delivered in person shall be
deemed to be given when rece

Section 15.  Successors and AsStons

All covenants and agreements contained by §
bind their successors and assigns and shall inure to
assigns. Contractor may not assign its rights and ¢

provided it gives Contractor 10 days’ written notice pr

Section 16.  Governing Law

This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws, codes and regulations of t
Government, the State and any other governmental entity having jurisdiction over
activities set out herein. The laws of the State governs the interpretation, validity
and enforcement of this Agreement. Any action brought to enforce or inte Agreement
shall be brought in a court of appropriate jurisdiction in Harris County, s. Should any
provision of this Agreement require judicial interpretation, MPC and the Contractor agree and
stipulate that the court interpreting or considering the same will not apply the presumption that the
terms hereof will be construed against the Party who prepared the same, it being agreed that both
Parties hereto have participated in the preparation of this Agreement and that each Party had full
opportunity to consult legal counsel of its choice before the execution of this Agreement. If any
of the provisions contained in this Agreement is held unenforceable in any respect, such

20



unenforceability will not affect any other provision of this Agreement.
Section 17. Amendments and Waivers

ision of this Agreement may be amended or waived if such amendment or waiver
 approved by the Board and signed by a duly authorized representative of MPC

t of any claim, dispute or controversy arising out of or relating to the
ormance,of this Agreement (whether such claim, dispute or controversy
e, whether such claim, dispute or controversy arises under
therwise, or at law or in equity, or under state or federal
mages or any other relief) (all of which are referred to
2 tor have been unable to resolve within 30 days after
such Dispute arises, & ‘@tive of Contractor shall meet with the Chief Operating
Officer at a mut i ¢ not later than 30 days after such Dispute arises
int such representatives are unable to resolve any
ng, either Party may, by written notice to the other,
o mediation before a mutually agreeable mediator. If the Parties

such Dispute w
submit such Dispute to non-bi

are unable to agree upon a i ithi af] h written notice of submission to
mediation, the American AjybilFati iatiQi powered to appoint a qualified
mediator. If the Dispute is te i ' hointed by the American Arbitration
Association shall be qualified '8 g ars’ ienee in construction, engineering, and/or
public works operations. The a

appointment of the mediator, as applicable. 3 diator’s fee and any

Houston, Texas.
offices of the
reement is

filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held ata
If the Parties are unable to agree upon a location, t
American Arbitration Association in Houston, U
subject to final approval by the Board.

(b)  Subject to Contractor’s obligation to cq
Section 16, for purposes of all legal or equitable proceed#gs arising out of;gefating to or co
with this Agreement, Contractor hereby agrees that this Agreement is performable in whole
part in Houston, Harris County, Texas, and hereby submits to the jurisdiction of the state
within Houston, Harris County, Texas, and agrees that such jurisdiction shall be excl
respect to any such proceeding filed by Contractor. For the avoidance of doubt Contr,
expressly, clearly and unequivocally agrees that MPC has the right to choose the
any legal or equitable proceeding arising out of, relating to or connected with thi ement shall
be heard; and, having so agreed, Contractor hereby irrevocably waives its rig ove any such
proceeding to any federal court should MPC choose to bring any proceeding W any state court of
Texas. Furthermore, to the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby irrevocably waives
any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any proceeding arising
out of, relating to or connected with this Agreement in any state court in Houston, Harris County,
Texas. Finally, Contractor hereby irrevocably waives any claim which it may now or hereafter

-10-



167

have that any such proceeding brought in any state court in Houston, Harris County, Texas, has
been brought in an inconvenient forum.

(©) If Contractor brings any claim against MPC and Contractor does not prevail with
: ontractor shall be liable for all attorneys’ fees incurred by MPC as a result thereof.

ed to this Agreement is incorporated herein and shall be considered a
r the purposes stated herein, except that in the event of any conflict
ons of such exhibit and the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions
All titles or headings are only for the convenience of the parties
effect or meaning as to the agreement between the parties
on shall be considered a reference to such Section of this
eference herein to an exhibit shall be considered a

contradicted by evidence of pri
There are no unwritten oral ag

-11-



168

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement, in multiple
originals, each having equal force, to be made effective as of the Effective Date hereof.

MIDTOWN IMPROVEMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION D/B/A
MIDTOWN PARKS CONSERVANCY

By:
Name: ~ MATT _ THIBO PEAUL
Title: Chief Operating Officer

LAWN MANAGE]

Name: Brandon Crumpler |
Title: __Vice President of O

Signature Page
Field Maintenance Service Agreement



EXHIBIT A

Midtown Parks Maintenance
Scope of Services

(General Provisions)

¢ defined herein, capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings

all personnel, materials, tools, equipment, and services
andscaping and general cleanup services including but not

appropriately at all times. S ally, all employees staffed by Contractor must wear an
identifiable uniform which wil

(©) Contractor wil

(d) Contractor’s key staff, including
“Contractor’s Key Staff”’), shall have current know,
safety, hazardous materials spill response, plant
pesticide application, and irrigation maintenance:

Manager (the
ices regarding

(e) Contractor has retained at least one p
commercial pesticide applicator, who is certified by the Te€xas Department oFAgriculture, an
has complied and shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal requirements regardi
materials, methods of work, and disposal of excess and waste materials.

3} Contractor has retained at least one arborist, who is certified by the
Society of Arboriculture, to monitor all work related to trees, which includes but 1
corrective pruning, structural pruning, and disease treatment.

(g) Contractor has retained an irrigation technician who is licensed®y the appropriate
authority and has a minimum of five years of experience in irrigation operation and repairs for
projects with two wire systems. All irrigation maintenance and repairs shall be performed by, or
under the direct supervision of, a Certified Irrigation Technician (CIT) or Certified Irrigation
Auditor.

A-1



17

(h) To the extent the Basic Contract Services or Supplemental Contract Services to be
performed hereunder entail landscape maintenance, such services shall be provided in accordance
with the Scope of Services (Specific Provisions) attached hereto as Exhibit B.

ontractor shall provide, at its sole cost and expense, a facility located within the
ad security of its materials, tools, and equipment required to provide the services
oreement. MPC will have no responsibility for any theft, loss, or damage to

C written reports in form and substance as is required
by the Chief Operat} i tance, and frequency of such reports shall be in the
1 ’ i ally by the Chief Operating Officer. Contractor

shall be given ¢ e of such changes in reporting requirements.

(c) Contractor shall'@@ordinate weekly with the Chief Operating Officer for work
assignments and to determine effperformance of such Basic Contract

Services. If a change in suc
notify the Chief Operating O

(d) Contractor will < c g Officer, upon his or her request, to
assess the site conditions on-site a i 1 reement. Contractor
shall receive notice of such request in accordance ¥

(e) Contractor will submit to MPC amg
per zone, run times from the previous month, and
will also submit the irrigation inspection report.

) Contractor will submit to MPC a yearl
2.10 of the Specific Provisions attached hereto as Exhibit B.

(g) If Contractor will be unable to perform the Basic Contract Services due to in
weather as described in Section 4(c) of the Agreement, such notice will be comm
provided under Section 4(c) and such services will be performed at the next earliest
when inclement weather no longer prohibits Contractor from performing such se

Section 3. Performance

(a) Contractor must respond within four hours to emergency or complaint calls made
during a business day, and within eight hours to emergency calls not made on a business day,
regarding conditions in the public right-of-way that require immediate attention, including, but not
limited to, fallen trees or branches, emergency preparedness for damage prevention in the event of
severe weather forecasts, and irrigation mainline breaks.

A-2



(b) Contractor will take all necessary precautions to safeguard and protect existing
utilities and structures, and other property within MPC from damage that may result from activities
performed by or on behalf of Contractor.

Section 4.

e performed due to a Weather Day or Quiet Time (as defined
of service according to the Frequency Schedule.

ent and machinery in this Agreement are not
intended to seg S i cific manufacturers. The mention of specific
manufacturers 1 actor towards the intended maintenance outcomes of
this Agreement.

(1) Fertilizg eld. No visible underlapping of

applications will be p¢

good working order, cutting edges
ed or infected plant

(ii) Pruning tog
should be sharp. All tools®
material shall be disinfected.

(iii)  All noise-generating equip i jance with the
City’s Noise and Sound Level Regulation ; ces. The
use of noise-generating equipment may b i ng hours
designated by MPC as quiet times (“Quiet

(iv)  All electric powered equipment ssions require
provided under applicable local, state or federal laws, codes and regulations.

(b) Contractor must provide personal protective equipment, including, but n
to pollen filter face masks, respirators, hardhats, reflective vests, eye protection,
protection; and must require personnel to wear such equipment as required by Occ
and Health Standards, or other local and state codes and regulations. MPC will
for any bodily harm caused due to lack of personal protective equipment.

() Contractor shall provide at its sole cost and expense two E-Z-Go Carts or similar
golf carts for use in trash and debris collection within the Zone. Vehicles must display clearly
visible signage containing MPC’s name and logo at all times while in the Zone. Any such signage
will be provided by MPC for use by the Contractor and must be surrendered to MPC upon
termination of this Agreement. Contractor will be solely responsible for the disposal of trash and



172

debris collected and shall properly dispose of any such trash and debris in accordance with any
applicable municipal, state or federal law.

(d)  Contractor will provide at its sole cost and expense a pressure washer and water
tank, as needed, for pressure washing and hand irrigation within the Service Area.

Section 6

oyees or agents of Contractor who are required to perform services,
ent shall complete the Rail Safety Training provided by METRO prior
of such services.

edges and understands that landscaping services carry an
{ shall take precautions to avoid reasonably foreseeable risks

under Basic Contract Services shall be considered
Supplemental Contract Servic ding to the nature of the item of

(b) Supplemental Co

() Repair of damage to the 1 arties other than
employees or agents of Contractor.

(i)  Plant removals and replacej or are a

result of damage caused by parties other

(iii)  Repair of damage to the sites
than employees or agents of Contractor.

(9] Contractor may submit project or service proposals to MPC for any servi
included in Basic Contract Services. Such proposals must include an itemized pricing esfd
equipment, materials, labor and related expenses, and must be approved by the Chi
Officer prior to beginning performance of any project or service.

A-4



EXHIBIT B

Midtown Parks Maintenance
Scope of Services

(Specific Provisions)

ULTURE EXPECTATIONS

herbicides and insecticides on turf,
s on hardscapes.

6. Debris removal.
7. Irrigation system maintenang
8. Reporting of services perfo
1.2. TURF CARE
A. DEFINITION

1. Turf refers to the surface layer of ground consisting of grass a
system, often cultivated for lawns, sports fields, and landscapj
natural (sod) or synthetic (artificial turf), with natur
ecological benefits such as erosion control, temperat
carbon absorption. Turf is valued for its aesthetic 1, recreational
functionality, and ability to create soft, green outdoor spaces. Proper
maintenance, including mowing, irrigation, and fertilization—is essential to
keep turf healthy and visually appealing.

B. GENERAL CARE



Mowing: During periods of cool weather (when the soil temperature is
below 64 degrees Fahrenheit), mow at 2.5-inch height (with exception to
scalping lawn in preparation for winter rye). However, during hot weather
(when soil temperature average is above 64 degrees Fahrenheit), the cut
height should be no lower than 3 inches from the soil. Mowing is to be
performed per the Frequency Schedule.

wns must not be scalped. No more than 1/3 of the existing top growth
1 be removed in one mowing occurrence. If more than that is removed,
ove or catch clippings that remain on lawn surface for more than four

areas, where equipment will track up or damage the turf,
we Contractor will be responsible for any damage that is
et areas including as well as associated repairs of
includes but is not limited to the following:
nt, and regrading of any disturbed topography. It
string trimmer in such areas.

around all turf
use trimmers
is possible.
ings from

perimeters, and along walk
around tree and shrub t
Maintain a 6-feet diamete
edging will be removed fro
to maintain a clean appearance:

7. Watering: Provide a regular, deep watering program. The established
should not be kept wet it should slightly dry out between watering.
8. In areas of established turf, do not allow the lawn to grow over,
saucer rim. Maintain height of grass at tree trunk with
trimmer. Keep saucer rings neat and uniform in size an
9. Fertilize turf areas as required during the year as
Schedule.
FERTILIZATION

1.

Contractor will apply fertilizer in the Parks based on the results of the soil
test reports and Frequency Schedule.

B-2



175

2 The March and September applications shall be at least 50% slow release
and 1 1b. N/1000 square feet shall be applied. The September application
shall have 1 Ib. K/1000 square feet applied.

Operate the irrigation system on the same day of application. The system
should operate for 15 minutes for spray heads and 45-60 minutes for rotary
heads to thoroughly water in the fertilizer.

ply all fertilizer to turf areas by spreading with a cyclone spreader, or
a manual spreading tool where necessary.

turf fertilization should occur in the streets improvements or entry areas.

is to be bagged and removed from the Service Area.
s to be hand raked, bagged, and removed and

Contractor will use a plug aer@ ves small cores
of soil from the lawn, whic i 1 tors that can
further compact the soil.

and to wash soil particles back into the holes created by aeration.

6. Refrain from aerating Bermuda grass in the fall since it 1s p
dormancy and will not benefit as much from the aeration pr

t eight weeks
ergent barrier.

7. Turf aeration will be performed immediately before, or,
after, pre-emergent application so as to not affect the p

1.3. TREE CARE

A. DEFINITION

B-3



1. Trees are large woody plants that typically have trunk(s) supporting a
canopy of branches and leaves. Unlike shrubs, trees generally grow taller
and have a more defined structure with a prominent central trunk. They can
be either deciduous, shedding their leaves annually, or evergreen, retaining
their foliage year-round. Trees are often used in landscaping for their ability
to provide shade, enhance aesthetic appeal, and contribute to the ecological
balance by producing oxygen and offering habitats for wildlife.

. PRUNING

ornamental trees shall be pruned under the direction of a certified
a natural format. The Contractor must follow ANSI A300
ds and develop prescription pruning specifications that

cut shortens a branch by cutting the
1 branch of equal or

should be utili: to manage tree
growth.

2) Removal:
branch or back to t

3) Heading: This type®of cut is made to
smaller than one third the diameter of the cut or a
between branches. This type of cut should only be utili
rare circumstances (i.e. storm damage rejuvenatio

f. Diameter range and cut quantity
8. Location in crown of parts to be removed.

2. Suckers on trees and broken, damaged, or obstructing limbs of trees must
be continually removed from trees. Suckers are to be removed to a height
of six feet.



10.

11;

If applicable, limbs shall be pruned to allow for a clearance height of eight
feet over sidewalks and 14 feet over roads. New trees do not need to meet
this requirement upon installation unless there is a visible and potential
concern. Reduction cuts can be made to the lower limbs until the tree has
developed enough caliper to remove.

It is NEVER an acceptable form of pruning to only remove the lowest
anch as a form of annual pruning.

s adjacent to buildings must be pruned so that they maintain at a
imum 3-feet clearance from any building facade through a process of
gtion cuts.

oval of the trees’ central leader(s) and upper
11 not be tolerated. Trees given Topping Cuts must

: opping Cuts or pollarded, but, like
other tree s retain a dominant leader with lateral

branching.

from the Chief Operating Officer prior to performing t ming, as

provided in this Agreement.

B-5



(D srramnains

(@) Deut e, o1 Gassad zean ans

() e emarytries

() Fernore corpemng axten

@ B nren LOE wien Jowey o wdnan
crver

o
Qe amc el

@) ssrmve coswcns orarvren

ally in March. Use a decomposed,
opsoil during regular
th at any time. If
must remove

preferred, the color of new m
existing mulch.

Material should be Double Ground Hardwood Mulch. Medium- to
textured woodchips are preferred, as fine material (e.g.: finely
bark mulch) can pack down and inhibit water from reaching
dyes shall be added to the mulch.

Contractor must monitor and provide corrective actio
piling on the base of tree trunks. (i.e. volcano mulch piles). Mulch must
always be held 3 inches away from the primary stem of any tree specimen.

Tree rings must be uniformly 6 feet in diameter from the base of the tree.

B-6



3
F. MISCELLANEOUS

Io

All residual material left from transporting mulch must be cleaned after
mulching has concluded. Residual material should be swept with a push-
broom, collected, and disposed of, not blown into the surrounding
landscape. Any staining on hardscape areas (concrete, pavers, or asphalt)
that is a result of mulching is to be cleaned with water and a push-broom.

ORING

tractor must monitor and report girdling roots.

Mukch pushed
againl the frurk
-~ Root flarn busied

Diamater too
anal 1o protect
the room

ased on the Frequency Schedule,
§ dictated deficiency in soil nutrients

Contractor shall follow ANS
the process of injecting nutrig

Max PSI will be 150 and s

After construction, or whenever applicable, wooderl lodge poles ma
utilized to support the tree, typically during root establishment period

removal.

Contractor will straighten and stake all trees to maintain proper appearance.
Stakes are to be removed when deemed unnecessary.

Contractor is responsible for loosening tree lighting and staking wires to
avoid gridling trunks or branches.

B-7



Contractor will deeply water all trees transplanted within the past three
years during dry periods. Supplemental watering is expected to occur July
through September bi-monthly to amend rainfall as necessary within the
limits of the irrigation system.

bs are small- to medium-sized perennial woody plants that typically
e multiple trunks. Unlike trees, shrubs generally do not have a single
gin trunksand are shorter in height. They can be either deciduous or

puld create a uniformly dense plant by utilizing a
VER SHEAR). Selectively thin and tip back per

oving the oldest branches of shrubs
e vigorous branches, and removing

without stimulating excessive gr

All ornamental shrubs shall be pruned when appropriate to remove de
damaged branches, maintain the natural form of the plant, and creat
effect intended by the landscape architect or designer.

Infected or infested branches on shrubs should be removed
prevent the spread of disease. By practicing sound sani
including timely removals, damage caused by certain di s or harmful
insects can be slowed down or stopped in a given ar ways disinfect
tools with a 70% isopropyl alcohol solution before and after cutting infected
plant material.

Refrain from cutting too much plant material at once, as it can stress the
plant. For shrubs, aim to remove no more than one-third of the plant’s
overall growth in a single pruning session.

B-8



181

v If the shrub has become overgrown, consider gradually reducing its size
over multiple pruning sessions. Minor touch-up pruning may be necessary
to address any new growth that disrupts the even appearance.

() magromm it swmsiy

Potrin Y Ed e luger
(2] parss o kst b e
e T ek

Plodd it o naims b el
]

::I"\lvmm-vv'iﬁw; tractes
Q}uhrucaa‘mw
(Oowaid IHe (oD

FERTILZER
1. Review soil test results fir

2. If applicable, fertilize peren i or any 50%
organic fertilizer; or mulch i i i

3. The fertilization area shall
shall be given to root accessibi
and plant species. The area to be
the drip line of the plant. Overlapping fertilization areas shall be calcul
once.

E. MISCELLANEOUS

1. All beds shall be weeded on a continual basis throu
season to maintain a neat appearance at all times.

2. Pre- and post-emergent (foliar applied) herbicides shall be used where and
when applicable and in accordance with the product’s label.

3. Contractor will be responsible for monitoring the landscape site on a regular
basis. The monitoring frequency shall be determined by joint consensus



182

between MPC and Contractor. Trained personnel shall monitor for plant
damaging insect activity, plant pathogenic diseases, and potential cultural
problems in the landscape.

rennials” refers to herbaceous perennial plant species. Perennials are
ts that live for more than two years. Unlike annuals, which complete
r life cycle in one growing season, Perennials go dormant in the winter
return the following year. They can include herbaceous plants that die

tools with a 70% isopropyl
plant material.

4. Prune those that flower before the €nd of June immedTately after flowe
Flower buds develop during the previous growing season. Fall, winte
spring pruning would reduce the spring flowering display.

5; Prune those that flower in summer or autumn in winter or sprin
growth begins, since these plants develop flowers on new

6. Perennials may be pruned back by more than one-thir total size if it
is a species that experiences complete dormancy. Pef€nnials are to be
pruned or deadheaded to aid in proper flower growth and plant performance
throughout the growing season.

7. Collect and remove all pruned branches, leaves and debris from the area.
Dispose of trimmings appropriately- composting if possible.

B-10



FERTILZER

Perennials must be cut back in accordance with the best horticultural
practices during the appropriate time of the season to ensure a successful
growing season the following year. Failure to cut back or prune Perennials
appropriately can result in long-term health implications and aesthetically
unpleasing plant specimens. Cut all deciduous perennials flush to the
ground per the Frequency Schedule to allow new growth to develop freely.

A '.h\-‘\ . :f@ @ @ Rerevs dead sranching

A "\ { LA " Ruimove U3 of the kpe! sums
S o ] \ ’ g - Lo the buse bo wlow kghil to the
D' & e
L~ (:} Daddhead npent bisoma t

aoua

Rameve horizental growth
Tt G Ny

] i pring at a ¥ inch to 2 inches depth. If

1. Fertilize perennials with a 1 ertilizer; or mulch
Perennials with compost 1 1

21 The fertilization area shal
consider root accessibili
species. Overlapping fertilizatio

DIVIDING PERENNIALS

1. Perennials will be divided when the center of the plant begins to di
when plants display less vigor or flowering. Plants will be
spading fork and divided by hand, nursery spade, or a sharp kni ongest
divisions will be kept for replanting. Divisions will be large to make
a good display for the following season.

2. Divide plants that overcrowd the space provided. Divide according to the
species. Some need frequent dividing (e.g., Yarrow every two years).

MISCELLANEOUS



All beds shall be weeded on a continual basis throughout the growing
season to maintain a neat appearance at all times.

Contractor will be responsible for monitoring the landscape site on a regular
basis. The monitoring frequency shall be determined by joint consensus
between MPC and Contractor. Trained personnel shall monitor plant
damaging insect activity, plant pathogenic diseases, and potential cultural
oblems in the landscape.

and encourage fresh growth

Cutting back ornamental grag es above the
ground during their dorma ing), helps
rejuvenate the plant and p i

Lack of moisture can cause the ornamental grass to

Remove any dead, damaged, or weak stems at their base to impr
circulation and maintain the plant’s shape. This can be done thro
growing season as needed.

Collect and remove all pruned material from the area. Co if possible,

or dispose of appropriately to maintain a tidy garden s



- Fres omarsiid g nhls

LD [ pe—
WA (M TR b
aryng g b roonrs
e ]
S

1. ins to die out or

display for the following season

2a Divide grasses that overcrowd the space provided. Some species may
frequent dividing (e.g., Miscanthus every 3-4 years), while others
rarely need it (e.g., Pennisetum).

3. Weed all beds on a continual basis throughout the growi
maintain a neat appearance at all times.

4. Do not utilize pre-emergent in beds as this has shown ¢ to ornamental
grasses.

5. If there is concern with reproduction of seed heads, remove the seed heads
before they mature.

B-13



1.7.  VINES
A. DEFINITION

Vines are plants with a growth habit characterized by trailing or climbing
stems. They often use tendrils, twining stems, or other structures to support
themselves as they grow upwards or spread across the ground. Vines can be
werbaceous or woody and are commonly used in landscaping for their ability
over walls, trellises, and other structures.

D. FERTILIZATIC

1; If soil reports indicate t
adequate growth from the sp
organic fertilizer or mulch
nutrients.

1.8. ANNUAL CARE
A. MATERIAL

I Plant material should be consistent throughout the Service Areg
material shall be presented to and approved by the Chief Operatin
prior to installation.

B. INSTALLATION
L, Soil and Bed Preparation

a. Soil is to be amended to consist of at least 50% organic matter. Beds
shall be raised to a minimum of 4-6 inches above adjacent grade to
provide drainage and optimal air flow.

2. Planting

B-14



1.9.

a. Annuals are to be thoroughly rooted-in containers and have full
dense foliage prior to installation.

b. Plant material shall be immediately watered after installation.

A layer of compost soil mix or mulch shall be applied to top-dress
the bed after installation. Ensure no plant material is buried
underneath soil or mulch mixes.

ilization
Refer to Section 1.10 below.
MONITORING

oularly monitored for weeds in beds, nutrient
diseases.

or diseases should be immediately reported to the
with appropriate corrective action to be taken.

3. o and trimming should ggeur, when necessary, all debris shall
d removed from si

INSECT, FUNGICT

A. Contractor shall ut i ing to synthetic products.

B. All chemical applications must be : d positive pest,
disease, or fungus identification.

C. Under no circumstances will prg i 1 tions of
products be allowed without writte

D. All products must be EPA-Approved an f Operating
prior to application.

E. Control problems with regular applications as problems arise. Use an
commercial product per the manufacturer’s recommendations.
methods (hand removal) may also be employed.

F. If Contractor determines that calendar-based or “blanket

necessary, Contractor must provide a two-week notice of est. The Chief
Operating Officer will determine if such applications are permissible. Contractor
must provide the following information in a request for calendar-based or “blanket”
application of any product:

1. Identification of pest, disease or fungus and reasons for the control is
required.



B.

188

Description of the cultural, non-chemical, and/or spot application of
products previously attempted and assessment of success or failure of those

remedies.

Reasonable Integrated Pest Management based alternatives that are
available locally.

a.
b.
during April and Octobe
3. Fertilization for the control of Iron Chlorosis:
a. Mix chelated iron with herbicides to prevent yellowing o
turf areas.
b. Apply chelated iron to turf areas as needed for
deficiency.
c. Chelated Iron shall be applied to any tree, shrub, or groundcover as

a part of routine maintenance. Apply per the instructions of the
manufacturer. Water after application to prevent chemical burning.

APPROVED CHEMICAL AND USE

B-16



189

1, Brands are stated to demonstrate the level of quality required. The
Contractor shall select an organic product or the least toxic product
available for use. It is not the intent of the specification to prohibit the use
on an “equal” product.

2; Application rates and dates of applications of any amendments, chemical or
fertilizer must be recorded and submitted with regular reports to MPC.

The name and license number of the Contractor’s chemical applicator must
e provided to MPC.

. HERBICIDE

and weeds of concern are to be controlled with ongoing
anagement techniques.

is not permitted. No products with dyes or
paved areas.

by digging, and irrigation head damag
of the Contractor.

irrigation equipment (i.e. additions of drip hosing) as it may be required to ¢
to the irrigation requirements herein specified. Such additions, subtractio
realignments to irrigation system equipment must not materially redu

authorization to proceed from the Chief Operating Officer.

D. Supplemental irrigation where there is no irrigation system or 1 areas that are not
serviceable by the irrigation system, are to be hand watered. Contractor is
responsible for monitoring the moisture levels and watering accordingly.

B-17



2.2.

During times in which the irrigation system is inoperable, or water is cut off, the
Contractor must monitor the landscape and notify MPC if hand watering is
necessary. The Contractor is to provide hand watering upon the written approval of
the Chief Operating Officer at the expense of MPC.

Contractor is responsible for obtaining and abiding by all regulatory
ements regarding water restrictions or bans from local, state, or federal
es. The Contractor must adjust the irrigation system in accordance to any

, but only if, the Contractor makes the necessary
estrictions or bans.

L ecessary to correct damage caused by parties not
are considered Supplemental Contract Services, as
set forth in Secti
for authorizatio e are a separate contract and shall
be performed b thin one week after authorization

I.
monthly report. The report must B , ith the monthly
checklist. The Contractor is to notify i
have a designated representative prg

K. The Contractor must respond to €
within 24 hours of the first call to repair

L. All repairs of irrigation systems caused by parties that are not affiliated with
Contractor shall be at the expense of MPC.

DEBRIS REMOVAL

A. Contractor must perform debris removal services at the designate
per the Frequency Schedule.

B. The Contractor is responsible for the removal of all visible debris, including but not
limited to fallen leaves, branches, twigs, and litter, from all areas within the
landscape site.

C. The Contractor must collect and properly dispose of all trash, including wrappers,

bottles, cans, and any other litter within the landscape.



The Contractor shall separate recyclable materials and green waste (e.g., leaves and
grass clippings) from general trash and dispose of it properly, abiding by any
required recycling ordinances.

e Contractor shall ensure the safe and proper handling of debris and trash

oval, taking necessary precautions to prevent injury or damage during the

actor must provide the required equipment, tools, and personnel
o efficiently complete the debris and trash removal tasks.

ish supervision, labor, and equipment necessary to
clated to horticultural maintenance.

debris in the surrounding streetscap

The Contractor is responsible for clg

map showing locations of trash cans, which is attached heret6 as Exhibit C.

Any overflow or adjacent trash and debris is the Contractor’s responsibility
up.

Dog waste found within the dog parks is to be picked up by the Co

Contractor does not have access to a dumpster located in the ¢ Area. Trash
must never be stored on-site and shall be hauled away offsite daily. Contractor is
responsible for all labor, equipment use, material cost and dumps fees.

Contractor is expected to remove litter, debris, and limbs before mowing, excluding
material that has been illegally dumped. Litter and debris shall be defined as an
object not intentionally placed in the Service Area for a specific purpose. This will

B-19



include, without limitation, paper, wrappers, cans, bottles, building materials,
disposable diapers, and small limbs. Such litter and debris must be cleaned before
cutting the landscape.

ontractor must pick up all litter and debris before mowing and immediately
owing the actual mowing and trimming to further ensure that all such litter

e cubic yards of litter and debris must be disposed of properly, outside of
t the Contractor’s expense. MPC will pay Contractor a negotiated rate

is. Upon verification by MPC, the Contractor must
without limitation, all landfill receipts, used

0. inters obstructive conditions on Service Area sites that are
wed, including, but ng d to, junk motor vehicles, illegally
dumped mate existence of addi res, excessive litter, inability to
son, the Contractor will notify MPC
before pictures documenting such
conditions before
P. The Contractor must remove from th ispose of all tree

limbs measuring up to six inches in g
24. HEAVY TRASH

A. The Contractor shall perform heavy tras
sites, including the collection and dispo

1. Furniture (e.g., chairs, tables, sofas),

2. Mattresses and box springs,

3. Appliances (excluding hazardous materials unless otherwis

4. Other oversized debris not classified as standard litter en waste.
B. Heavy trash removal shall be removed timely to ensure site cleanliness and safety.
C. The Contractor must:

B-20



2.5.

L.

DECOMPOSED AGGREGATE

A.

B.

193

1. Use appropriate equipment and techniques to safely handle and transport
heavy items.
2. Take precautions to prevent injury, property damage, or disruption to

surrounding areas during removal.

Ensure that all personnel involved are trained in proper lifting and safety

trash must be disposed of in accordance with local regulations and
All heavy trash must be documented with disposal receipts or logs upon

ansport and legally dispose of all tires from the
appropriate municipal solid waste facility as defined by the
ill be paid a negotiated rate per tire

Service Area to
Texas Adminis
removed from t

Tires that mu g Area include, but are not limited to,
passenger cats, SUVs, motorcycles,
and pick-up trucks; i found on semi-trailer
trucks, or “18-wheelers;” and (3)
tires, which are most found on const

wheels attached. Contractor must ng

Contractor will plan to remove 30

Aggregate areas shall be maintained as per the following specification:

Weekly Maintenance

1. Remove debris, such as paper, grass clippings, weeds, 1
organic material, by mechanically blowing or hand raki surface as
needed.

2. Redefine bed edges that have been kicked, raked or traveled outside of the

intended bedding area into adjacent beds or turf areas.

3. Inspect edging and raise and/or replace where necessary (broken, damaged,
excessive rusting).

B-21



4. Inspect for divots, ruts or trails that have been created by traffic and
redistribute or top-dress as needed.

C. Annual Maintenance

During the first year, a minor amount of loose aggregate will appear on the
surface (1/16 to 1/4 inch). If this material exceeds a 1/4 of an inch
-distribute the material over the entire surface. Water thoroughly to the
oth of one inch. Compact with power roller of no less than 1000 pounds.
s process should be repeated as needed.

sweep fines into the cracks, water thoroughly and hand
0-inch hand tamp plate. Do not use a power plate
mage the stabilizing solution.

on shall include the following: Prepare the subgrade
below finished grade of the decomposed granite. Compact
fitter fabric over the compacted
cut around necessary elements.
quired to keep the fabric in place

ranite or crushed '/4
minus aggregate screening ¢ thoroughly and
uniformly mixed throughou i enings. Bucket
blending is not acceptable i i ovel is not
acceptable. Blend material

Be Placement of Decomposed
Dampen thoroughly, roll and
finished grade per plans. Ensure positive drainage.

4. Upon thorough moisture penetration, compact aggregate screenings
relative compaction by compaction equipment, such as double
or single drum roller. DO NOT USE VIBRATORY PLAT
VIBRATION FUNCTION ON ROLLER. Do not begin
hours after placement and up to 48 hours.

51l Do not compact decomposed granite within 3 feet of a tree trunk.

6. Finished surface of pathway shall be smooth, unform and solid. There shall
be no evidence of chipping or cracking.

F. Environmental Conditions

B-22



195

1. Do not install decomposed granite paving during rainy conditions or below
40 degrees Fahrenheit and falling.

G. Other

Decomposed granite and Black Star Gravel to be re-dressed when needed.

All decomposed granite paths within the prairie planting mix and native
.as shall have a 36-inch pass on each side of path mowed and edged

2.6.

esigned to collect stormwater from the adjacent landscape
cabsorption, these systems are also designed to collect
eoral component within the design of the Parks, these
aanicured system. Poor maintenance is a common

direct, and hold
soils. Proper be

i,

8

81

4. Contractor is responsible for refoving any trash
placed or migrated to the rain garden beds.

5. Sediment build-up within rain garden areas is not uncommon- it
in poor performance in terms of rainwater absorption. The Chi
Officer may request sediment removal within rain gar
Supplemental Contract Service.

6. Contractor is responsible for the care of the aquatic plants with the rain
garden. This includes removing invasive species.

C. Stormwater Drainage and Cleanout
1. Contractor is responsible for cleaning out drain and stormwater inlets.

B-23



196

2. Contractor will make sure drains are in operable condition on a quarterly
basis as part of their services, especially with drains in gravel. Gravel and
debris should be removed from drains every quarter.

ocalPoint® High Performance Modular Biofiltration System (“HPMBS”) General
cifications

he FocalPoint® HPMBS utilizes physical, chemical and biological

chanisms of a soil, plant and microbe complex to remove pollutants

cally found in urban stormwater runoff. The FocalPoint® HPMBS is a

equipped, modular, constructed-in-place system designed to treat
ed runoff.

the FocalPoint® HPMBS, is filtered by the High Flow
and passes through to the underdrain/storage system
is detained, retained, or infiltrated to sub-soils, prior
sewer system of any remaining flow.

trained landscape personnel can
MBS by following the instructions
with a copy of the FocalPoint®

Mulch replacement;

d. Plant health evaluation (ificluding measure
replacement as necessary;

e. Clean area around FocalPoint® HPMBS; and

f. Complete paperwork, including date-stamped phot
listed above.

B-24



2.7. DRAINAGE

A.

2.8. PLAYGROUND MULCH

A.

Inspection of FocalPoint® HPMBS and surrounding ares

Reciard indmidual unit before mantenance with photograph (numbesed]. Record on Maintenance Report (see example

in thit documoent] (he lollgwing

Standing Water

s Bypass Intet Clear?

al of Silt / Sediment / Clay

sit (i amy) and mulk

G remiove

| material remove Olm ght
Removal of 5, trash and mulch
af mulech and debris, measure distance lrom the top of the FocalPoint® HPMBS enginecred mes ol i
slovation of 4 fjacont overflo syance, If this distance i greatar than that g any

Mulch Repl»
Mok

¢ rieciuine only repl

For smaller pr

ged hargwood mulch whah has beeg icresned 10

1o adepthof 3°

wiimend from engeegy dissg & indet 10 the FocaiPoint® HPMBS o allow los
& Storm owent

Plant health evaluation 2« prunins ent as Necessd

LALOn me

Cledn accumu

entry of trash ¢

Exammne the pla

Prog o nedessary 1o enco

Widlth at Widest point (feet

Clean area around FocalPoint® HPMBS

Complete paperwork

Dediver Maintenance Report and photographs 55 apiy

Drainage is to be flushed and tested quarterly including the inspectig
of pipes or catch basins to ensure each is clear and free of clogs.

clearing

Contractor is not responsible for the general maintenance of the “Active Play
Areas,” which are defined as areas that are within the Safety Impact Zones of play
equipment and the respective play equipment. “Safety Impact Zones” are areas
surrounding play equipment, characterized by a transition in surfacing material

B-25

N



2.9,

from hardscape material to either artificial play turf surfacing or engineered wood
fiber surfacing.

Contractor is responsible for maintaining areas that are adjacent to Active Play
Areas, including, but not limited to, hardscape paver areas, planting beds, natural
areas, or wood decking material. Contractor is responsible for generally
ining all associated furnishings such as benches, railings, trash receptacles,

itten authorization for other routine maintenance services with respect
ishings.

equipment, play surfacing, or the Active Play Areas that are
or on behalf of the Contractor shall be fully repaired or
determined by a certified playground inspector retained

es include, but are not limited to, impact attenuation
(vehicle) use and improper edge maintenance of

D. ; equipment should never be left unsecure. This 1s
ree ar Active Play Areas. Any resulting damage due to
e Contractor near these ageas shall be the responsibility of the
Contractor.
B Maintenance
F. The maintenance be a Supplemental
tilizing a magnet to
remove any foreign metallic objects G ea, replenishing
mulch to a depth of 12 inches, and re i
G. MPC acknowledges that Contra
Contractor. Discoloration or loss du
or weather extremes beyond Contractor’
PRESSURE WASHING
A. Contractor shall furnish supervision, labor, and equipment necessary to

wash brick pavers, planters, and hardscape materials in MPC-design
including, without limitation:

1. Ground surface perimeter of buildings;

2 Dog park and surrounding hardscape;

3. Walking and trail areas; and

4. Ground surface at entrances and high traffic areas.

B-26




B. Contractor shall assume 8 hours of labor per frequency task.
2.10. SOIL TESTING

he Contractor will be responsible for 10 annual soil tests. Contractor will submit
nap of proposed testing areas to MPC for approval prior to testing.

all be made in strict compliance with the standards of the Association of
nalytical Chemists and follow standards from ASTM, EPA, and/or

15 centimeters) deep is sufficient.
depth as needed.

F. Contractor will follow these steps to collect soil samples:
1. Clean all sample tools to prevent contamination between samples;
2. Remove any surface debris or vegetation from the sampling a

ct a sample
th and area;

3. Insert the soil auger or probe to a depth of 6-inches a
core, ensuring that the core is representative of the enti

4. Place the soil sample into a clean bucket or container and label it with a
unique identifier that corresponds to the sampling location;

5. Repeat the process for each sampling location, collecting multiple samples
per zone;

B-27



N
o
o

6. Handle soil samples with care to maintain their integrity;

7. Mix multiple cores from the same location in the bucket to create a
composite sample;

Air-dry or spread out the composite sample on a clean surface to remove
excess moisture if needed;

ansfer about a pound of subsample from each composite sample into a
n plastic bag (i.e. gallon zip lock bag);

bel them with detalled mformatlon including date, site location, and any

records of your sampling process, including site
ection date, and any relevant observations or site

Contractor will
any specific tes
accurate analy

Contractor will interpret them in the
; approprlate agtions, such as ad]ustmg

Once Contractorte
context of MPC-apptov
fertilizer applications, pH correct1

Soil sampling protocols may vary d
conditions, so Contractor must cons
soil testing laboratories for additio
and needs.

Soil testing facility shall be approved by
Gam Wallace Laboratories. 365 Coral Circle El Segundo, CA 90245. (310) 6
0116.

B-28



N
o
—

EXHIBIT C
Depictions of the Service Area

[Attached]




WCLAY ST = = I b E E 5 %, n
; o 5 i 5 ] 44,
Freedmen’s Town/  jwenst ¢ ¢ ¢ § i 3 ¢ Rep
Fourth Ward T oF 8§ 3§ 0 LS = &
WBELL ST 3 E] 2 2 *or
CLEVELAND 5T & > " A
P e‘? [
PIERCE ST 3 “
w \ICTOR ST 'g " ‘s’-" & é)\u? "5y
= ﬁ'n y ki i
W GRAY ST Entry Portal 6 ® d E“"T Portal 1 & o
z Y F &
ONIEL ST 2 Soy @ ¢
SEDEN ST 3 8 W, 57& &,
3 Dy,
>
s
= 3
5 & § Downtown
IOMAH 5T 2 l::" &
2 =)
g (3
NILLARD ST e ST
NELCH ST
NEST DREW ST
FARGO 5T
-
5
o &
AIRVIEW AVE % g
H f 23
- %
. » S
4YDE PARK BLVD - E) K _éé?
3 &
S
& A
JACIFIC ST Gb k”
i _ § &
0 @ A’"
=3 o &
- &
9% B &
b3 £ o
£ e
£
'VONDALE 51

WESTHEIMER RD

Entry Portal 5 (4

Montrose
LOVETT BLVD
7 %Gs;
AWTHCRNE ST 3 Y
4 S
S
EMERSON ST & P - 4 ;}
AROLD ST ntry Porlal .
L ‘() Entry Portal 2 %4,
n s e,
= £ WESTMORELAND ST -
PLING ST % g
3 Ed g
g s 0; A
< e, o
KOS §
ARSHALL ST % &£
: 1
4 ALABAMA ST &
.
5 &
5 &
2
UL ADSS 8T g
-
w Portal 3
BRANARD ST 3
2
WEST MAIN ST
= - coLQuITT 57
5 5
9 [
5 @
% &
: o RICHMQOND AVE
%
&
I3
<
2 -
OAKLEY ST - [
-]
:
WOODROW ST
%
0’1
1 §
$
S
@
o
#‘1 n .
& Museum District
T
Foziaunar
FINEDALE ST
fo,
A
e,
OAKDALE ST
%,
",
g
-,
4(4,»
g
“
& & 5
5 o & &
§ s
CU- Y
Uy F & £
b & § IS

0 0.25 Mili
L J

Service Area (Parks 1 and 2)
midtown



_@_ BAGBY PARK | LOCATION MAP

om this limit of work and is the responsibility of the restaurant.

*La Calle re! area is exeq
{ pt and are not part of the RFP

**Restrooms a



@ MIDTOWN PARK + PLAZA | LOCATION MAP

TRAVIS STREET

ANITA STREET

hr/a. Il_”l.al.lL‘ e

d —

MAIN STREET

*Restrooms and fountain are
**No motorized vehicles (with

t of the RFP

pt and are ng
g Q mowers) on lawn areas.

MCGOWEN STREET



— -3 - 2
- i S I e, “~,
s i
5 i 205
s —— Y "~

Freedmen's Town/
gus Fourth Ward -—

v
an

g

et

[ R o

]

=it
E =

PR

arsaE

gy

QeaEYsT

Museum District

= "y,

2/
L
*"%,% 288 A
By P S ‘;
% & F 3 o
. - £
RN P & E.,l’
» ] 025 Mi
! J

GIS Parcels abtained from tha Gity of Houslan, Dacembar 2015

MPC Trash Bins
22 Trash Cans

nidtown



N
o
[e)]

EXHIBIT D
Frequency Schedule

[Attached]




N
o
~N

Bagby Park
Landscape Services Frequency Schedule
Scope Item [Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May [June [ July [ Aug [Sept] Oct [ Nov | Dec | [Total
TURF AREAS
Manicured Mowing 2 2 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 4 2 2 42
Stick Edge 2 2 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 4 2 2 42
Turf Aeration 1 1 1 1 4
Turf Fertilizati 1 1 1 3
Insect & Di ntrol AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS
SHRUB UNDCOVER BE S
Be 4 4 4 5 4 5 4 5 4 4 52
uning & Maintenance 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
nial Pruning & Shaping 1 1 2
amental Grass Cut-back 1 1
ndcover Trimming 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
eds (2") 1 1
B ilization AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS
Inse e AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS
TREES
Clearance Pruning (up to 10°) 1 1
Structural Pruning 1 1
Deep Root Fertilization 1 1
Insect & Disease Contro AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS 1
SITE SERVICES
Supervisor Site Inspection & Report 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Lighting Inspection and Report 1 1 1 1 4
Furniture Wipe Down 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Clean-up/Debris Removal 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Trash Receptacle Emptying 4 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 52
Dog Waste Station Emptying 4 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 52
Gravel Aggregate Maintenance 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 24
Dog Run Gravel Replacement
Wash Dog Run Lawn 4 4
Spray Lines (cracks, joints, etc.) 1 1
Fire Ant Spot Trealment 1
Soil Testing
IRRIGATION
|Irrigation System Inspection, Adjustment & Report 1 1




Midtown Park & Midtown Park Plaza

Landscape Services Frequency Schedule

N
o
[e¢]

Scope item Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr |May |June | luly Sept[ Oct | Nov | Dec | | Total
TURF AREAS
Manicured Mowing 2 2 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 4 2 2 42
Stick Edge 2 2 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 4 2 2 42
Trim - Monofila 2 2 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 4 2 2 42
Turf Aeratio! 1 1 1 1 4
Turf Fertili 1 1 1 3
Insect e Control AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS
SH GROUNDCOVER BED
il 4 4 4 5 4 4 b 5 4 5 4 4 52
Pruning & Maintenance 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
rennial Pruning & Shaping 1 1 2
mental Grass Cul-back 1 1
cover Trimmin: 1 1 i 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
S Color Chan ion (P! 1 1 1 3
Bed i AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS
Insect AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS
TREES
Clearance Pruning (up to 10, 1 1
Structural Pruning 1 1
Deep Root Fertilizatio 1 1
Insect & Disease Contr AS DEFINED IN SPECIFICATIONS 1
SITE SERVICES
Supervisor Site Inspection & Report 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Lighting Inspection and Report 1 1 1 4
Furniture Wipe Down 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Playground Muich 1
Rain Garden Maintenance 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Clean-up/Debris Removal 5 4 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 52
Trash Receptacle Emptying 4 B 4 5 4 4 B 5 52
Dog Waste Station Emptying 4 4 5 4 4 4 4 A 5 52
Gravel Aggregate Maintenance 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 24
Dog Run Gravel Replacement 1 1
Wash Dog Run Lawn 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 4 4 52
Spray Lines (cracks, joints, etc.) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Fire Ant Spol Treatment 1 3| 1 8
Soil Testing 1
IRRIGATION
[irrigation System Inspection, Adjustment & Report 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 1 1 12




N
o
©

APPENDIX I

to

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
OWN IMPROVEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
D/B/A MIDTOWN PARKS CONSERVANCY AND
LAWN MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
FOR MAINTENANCE SERVICES

PARKS CONSERVANCY APPROVED HOLIDAYS

Independence Day
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Day

Appendix I



N
—
o

Exhibit B
Notice of Assignment
[Attached]




	AGENDA
	MINUTES
	Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
	Balance Sheet
	Check Register
	Budget Summary
	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	2024 - 990 Midtown Improvement & Development Corporation - Client Copy.pdf
	PROGRAMMING
	COMMUNICATIONS
	MAINTENANCE
	SECURITY
	PARKING
	ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT



